Haringey Council NOTICE OF MEETING

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

WEDNESDAY, 30TH MARCH, 2011 at 18:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD,
WOOD GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Bull (Chair), Browne (Vice-Chair), Alexander, Basu, Ejiofor,
Newton and Winskill

Co-Optees: Ms Y. Denny (church representative) plus 1 Vacancy, Ms S. Marsh
(Parent Governor), Ms M Jemide (Parent Governor), Ms S Young (Parent
Governor), Ms H Kania (LINk Representative)

AGENDA

1.  WEBCASTING

Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent
broadcast via the Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the
Chair will confirm if all or part of the meeting is being filmed. The
images and sound recording may be used for training purposes within
the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering
the meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting
to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound
recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Committee Clerk
at the meeting.
2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
3. URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will

be dealt with at item below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at
item below).



4,

10.

11.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the
authority at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the
existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration,
or when the interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice
the member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their
financial position or the financial position of a person or body as described in
paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any
person or body described in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, Section B,
paragraph 29 of the Council’s constitution.

SUPPORT TO CHILDREN AT RISK OF SUBSTANCE MISUSE (PAGES 1 -18)

To receive an update further to the Support to Children at Risk of Substance
Misuse Scrutiny Review.

CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS - CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S
SERVICES (PAGES 19 - 22)

Briefing and answers to questions — Councillor Lorna Reith, Cabinet Member for
Children’s Services.

CHILDREN'S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PRACTICE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE (PAGES 23 - 24)

To receive the report updating on the work of the Advisory Committee.
SAFEGUARDING ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS (PAGES 25 - 86)

To receive the update report on the delivery of the Safeguarding Plan, for the
period up to February 2011.

CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT (PAGES
87 - 100)

To consider and note the update report on child protection performance.

SCHOOL EXCLUSIONS (PAGES 101 -106)



To consider the report on Haringey school exclusions.

12. EXAM RESULTS (PAGES 107 -112)
To note the preliminary analyses of results at the end of the Foundation Stage,
Key Stages 1, 2, 4 and Post 16 for 2010.
Hard copies of background papers are available on request.
13. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
14. MINUTES (PAGES 113 - 118)
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 1% November 2010.
15. FUTURE MEETINGS
The next meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee will be held on 9" May
2011.
Ken Pryor Natalie Cole
Deputy Head of Local Democracy and Principal Committee Co-Ordinator
Member Services Tel: 020-8489 2919
River Park House Fax: 020-8489 2660
225 High Road Email: Natalie.Cole@haringey.gov.uk
Wood Green

London N22 8HQ

Monday 14" March 2011



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 7

Cabinet Member for Children and Young People
Overview and Scrutiny Child Protection on 30 March 2011

Finance

The 2010-11 budget recognised budget pressures primarily in the Looked After Children
(LAC) placement budgets including those attributable to the Southwark Judgement. In total
£4.4m was added to the budget, including £2.9m for placements and £0.8m for associated
legal costs. A further £0.6m was given to support staffing structures in Children and
Families targeted at safeguarding services.

Despite this additional resource the service has continued to experience increased
demands for its safeguarding services, resulting in an estimated overspend for the year
and the need for additional resources to be included as part of the 2011-12 budget setting
process.

2010-11 is the final year of the last multi-year funding settlement for the Dedicated Schools
Grant (DSG) and the government has announced both that per pupil funding is being
maintained for 2011-12 at 2010-11 levels and that the current funding arrangements are to
be continued for a further year. Significant work during 2010-11 has been focussed on
lobbying for a change to the inequitable Area Cost Adjustment (ACA) arrangements which
disadvantage Haringey and designing and consulting upon a new Early Years Single
Funding Formula (EYSFF) ready for implementation in April 2011.

Educational achievements

The percentage of pupils attaining 5+ A* - C grades in Haringey in 2010 is 73% compared
to the national result of 75.4%. Haringey schools improved by 24.5% in the percentage of
pupils attaining 5+ A* - C grades at GCSE from 2005 - 2010. This compares with a
national improvement of 18.3% in the same period. The percentage of pupils attaining 5+
A* - C (including English and maths) is 48% compared to the national result of 53.4%.
Haringey schools improved by 16.2% from 2005 -10 compared to a national improvement
of 9.1% in this measure.

Haringey’s Key Stage 2 results (percentage of pupils attaining both English and maths
level 4+) in 2010 are 75% compared to national results of 73%. These results, however,
have been affected by the national test boycott. Only 20 schools in Haringey (out of 57)
did the tests and the published results stated above are based on those schools that did
the Key Stage 2 tests.

e There are no Haringey schools below the government threshold of 30% 5+ A* - C
(including English and maths). The government has recently raised the threshold to
35% and this puts Greig City Academy (30%), St Thomas More (31%) and John
Loughborough (31%) below the new threshold

e As Corporate Parents you will be pleased at this year’s results for Looked After
children. Results at GCSE are better than ever; 20% passed 5 A* - C grades including
English and Maths (national LAC results are 12%) and 33% passed 5 A* - C grades
(national LAC results are 26%).

e The levels of young people who are Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET)
has reduced from 6.8% to 6.6% (2010-2011). The November to January average figure
for those young people who are not known has risen slight from 5.0% to 5.5% over the
same period from last year. These figures now bring us in line with statistical



Page 2

neighbours and close to national figures. The challenge will be to continue this
improvement in 2011 against an economic down turn.

Areas of Focus for the future

e The withdrawal of a number of Government grants and the transfer of others to schools
has required a major reduction in staffing numbers and a restructuring of the School
Standards Service. This process has now been completed and the new structure is
being implemented from 1 April 2011, although the full effects of the new approach will
be seen after the Easter break.

e The Government believes that schools rather than local authorities should be
accountable for pupils’ performance. Accordingly the new Standards Service has been
set up to assist schools in processing support for their own improvement, whilst
adequate resources for the LA to fulfil its residual responsibilities. Broadly, these
involve intervention where schools fall below floor targets and advocacy on behalf of
vulnerable pupils and their families. Haringey Council has also retained a range of
expertise at a strategic level in order to be able to work in partnership with schools on
matters of common concern. To assist in their process and reflect the partnerships
approach, an advisory group of headteachers has been established to act as a “critical
friend” to the Standards Service. Meanwhile, talks continue in order to identify mutually
advantageous ways of working with neighbouring LAs and thus increasing potential
capacity.

Investment in primary schools

Haringey has continued to respond to the London-wide primary reception places shortage
pro-actively, with work progressing on the expansion of Rhodes Avenue and planning in
progress for additional places in the east of the borough. In recent years 120 new primary
admission places have been created, with 30 more at Rhodes Avenue for 2011.

More primary school places will be needed in 2011 and beyond. We have developed
plans but await the delayed DfE National Capital Review outcomes in order to see whether
sufficient funding will be available.

At Broadwater Farm we are creating a new primary special school linked closely to a
rebuilt primary school as an innovative learning campus, providing the best for some of our
most vulnerable children alongside a superb mainstream primary school environment.

BSF

The Building Schools for the Future programme remains on target, with the new secondary
school — Heartlands High School — opened on time and within budget in September this
year. Works are now completed at all schools apart from remaining work at Heartlands
and at Woodside High School and its linked secondary special school (now know as
Riverside).

School Meals

Haringey’s school meals service introduced healthy eating menus a year before the new
national menus and nutritional standards were required. Meal take up in the all-important
primary years has increased by 10% over the last four years.

Prevention and Early Intervention
Currently the Children’s Networks department delivers prevention, early intervention and
support services to children and young people who have additional needs. From 1 April



Page 3

2011, to reflect the budget savings required of CYPS, a reformed department —
Prevention and Early Intervention - will have responsibility for Early Years (previously in
School Standards), Admissions and School Organisation (previously in Business Support
and Development), the remaining functions of School Standards, and the Youth Offending
Service (previously in the Chief Executive’s Service).

Areas of Focus

¢ Planning for the cessation of significant levels of grant funding — likely to affect play,
extended services, youth and behaviour support;

e reviews of Youth and Connexions, Participation and Play in the light of expected cuts

e reviews of Early Years and Children’s Centres in light of proposed budget reductions
and the development of cluster-based model of children’s centre delivery

e Discussions advancing with Enfield regarding a shared EPS/CAMHS service.

e Review of Childcare fees, following report to Cabinet on 8 February, with the proposed
introduction of a new fee structure from September 2011

o further development of multi-disciplinary teams to deliver more integrated support to
children/young people identified through the CAF as requiring targeted services e.g.
family support, behaviour support, speech and language provision, education welfare
etc

e consolidation of an intense piece of work across the CYPS and partners, particularly
NHS Haringey and the Mental Health Trust, to develop a strategy to support children
and young people with social, emotional and behavioural difficulties to ensure that the
needs of these children are appropriately identified, that they receive the right support
at the right time and, wherever possible, they are retained in Haringey provision.

e Development of a Preventative and Early Intervention model and thresholds for all staff
working with children, young people and families.

Children and Families

The numbers of Looked After Children have continued to stabilise and are now below 600.
Children who require statutory intervention to ensure they are safeguarded continues to be
the priority for Children’s Services and partner agencies.

The recent announced inspection of Safeguarding and Looked After Children’s Services
has evidenced the significant progress that the Local Authority and its partners have made
to strengthen safeguarding provision over the past 18 months.

The inspection took place over a two week period in January. The inspection noted the
highly visible and committed leadership within the partnership and commented that the
arrangements for contact, referral and assessment of children in need or who are at risk of
harm are good.

With regard to the quality of services for looked after children and young people the report
stated that they have been maintained despite the priority afforded to safeguarding
services, and the partnership is aiming for top quartile performance in all areas.

The report further commented that the capacity for improvement in both safeguarding and
looked after children’s services is good, that senior and political leadership has been
strengthened and is clearly aware of service needs and areas for further improvement.

Clearly there is still much to do, a number of recommendations were made which will be
part of plans for the continued improvement of services.



Page 4

We will continue to strengthen safeguarding services for our most vulnerable children
including looked after children for whom the council and its partners have a responsibility
as corporate parents.



Page 5 Agenda Item 8
h

‘/’?

Haringey

Briefing for: Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Title: Report from Children’s Safeguarding Policy and
Performance Advisory Committee

Lead Officer: Hilary Corrick, Independent Social Work Consultant,
and Independent Member
30th March 2011

Date:

1. INTRODUCTION
This report gives feedback from the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and
Performance Advisory Committee.

2, BACKGROUND INFORMATION
The Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee is a
back bench Committee which was set up in 2009 to look in detail at
safeguarding aspects of policy and practice. As such, it has linked with
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and their regular reviews of child
safeguarding work.

3. COMMITTEE UPDATE
At their January meeting members of the Children’s Safeguarding Policy
and Practice Advisory Committee received a report on contacts, referrals,
and assessments in the First Response service. They looked at the data
available and were able to compare rates of referrals, the proportion of
referrals which receive an Initial Assessment and timescales for
completing the assessments. Members were able to compare rates and
timescales in the borough with those of comparator authorities and
nationally. The data suggested that the service is able to identify those
children needing assessment at an early stage, but is less good at
completing those assessments in a timely way. Timeliness is important
but Members questioned officers about the quality of assessments.

At their next meeting members of the Safeguarding Policy and
Performance Advisory Committee will receive a report from Officers about

Page 1 of 2



X

‘/’?

Haringey

Page 6

child protection planning, and the issues and challenges. They will also
receive a report on an audit of child protection investigations which
started in November 2010.

THE COMMITTEE FUTURE

A report was presented to Cabinet on March 22 2011 which proposes
that the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory Committee
should be reconstituted to ensure that it works along similar lines to the
Corporate Parenting Committee.

Discussion had been held between with the Cabinet Member for Children
and Young People, Chair of Committee, Independent Member of the
committee and the Deputy Director for Children and Families about the
work of the committee and its alignment to the Cabinet as an advisory
committee. Similarities of the committee’s role to scrutiny and its position
in the committee structure were discussed and it was felt that the
committee was correctly aligned to the Cabinet as an Advisory
Committee. This provided the committee with a long term status and
allowed linkages to the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee to be
made. The Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee was
constructed to work in parallel to the Corporate Parenting Advisory
Committee and had duties for overseeing the Council’s responsibility for
children in need, particularly focussing on safeguarding.

This proposal was agreed and a joint meeting of the Children’s
Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee and the Corporate
Parenting Advisory Committee will be held in March 2011 to discuss
issues of mutual interest.

When these new arrangements come into place in the new Council year,
the Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Practice Committee should no
longer require to report formally to the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.

Page 2 of 2



Page 7 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

[No.]

Overview & Scrutiny On 28" March 2011

Report Title: Safeguarding Plan for Haringey

Report of Peter Lewis, Director of Children & Young People’s Service

Signed : N’M é'D/QJCmNoX@iL C/"\‘FS)

Contact Officer : Debbie Crossan, Project Manager

Wards(s) affected: ALL Report for: Non Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)
1.1.  This report provides Scrutiny with an update on delivery of the Safeguarding
Plan, for the period up to February 2011.

1.2. The report also presents the Inspection of Safeguarding and looked after
children services report (Ofsted February 2011)

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
21. N/A.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and / or other Strategies:

3.1.  The Haringey Community Strategy 2007-2016 in particular the ‘Safer for all’
key outcome. In response to the JAR Action Plan we have strengthened our
commitment to provide support and protection to the most vulnerable people in
our community through the following priority: We will ‘Safeguard children and
adults from abuse and neglect wherever possible and deal with it
appropriately and effectively if it does occur’ — Community Strategy Update,
March 2009

3.2. The Council Plan 2007-2010 priority of ‘Encouraging lifetime well-being at
home, work, play and learning’




Page 8

3.3.

3.4.
3.5.

The Children and Young People’s Plan 2009-20 in particular the ‘Stay Safe’
element which, in part, replicates the key actions developed within the
Safeguarding Plan.

Haringey Strategic Plan (NHS) 2008-2013
Safer for all, Haringey’s Community Safety Partnership Strategy 2008-2011

41,
4.2

4.3.

. Recommendations

To note progress in delivery of the Safeguarding Plan milestones.

To recognise the progress made and achievements identified through the
announced inspection. _

To note the development of a Safeguarding and Looked After Children Action
Plan which will replace the Safeguarding Plan.

. Reason for recommendation(s)

5.1.

This report provides Scrutiny with a progress report on the Safeguarding Plan
for Haringey up to February 2011.

. Summary

6.1.

6.2.

The Safeguarding Plan for Haringey has now been refreshed three times since
originally formed as the JAR Action Plan and is in the process of being
refreshed once again. These refreshes have incorporated findings from the
Ofsted inspections and key findings from the serious case reviews (SCRs).
The purpose of the plan is to enable the Council to be amongst the best at
safeguarding children and young people by 2012.

The announced inspection of safeguarding and looked after children which took
place in January confirmed our route of progress but more remains to be done.
Progress to the end of February 2011 is shown within the Safeguarding Plan
Milestone Report.

Chief Financial Officer Comments

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

The Safeguarding Plan attached to this report is not costed. Additional
resources amounting to £7.4m were agreed for the Children’s Service as part
of the 2011-12 budget however, it is clear that these resources target in the
main, on-going service pressures around the number of Looked After Children
(LAC) and their associated costs.

Consequently, any additional costs associated with implementing the
Safeguarding plan will need to be met from existing resources.

Future progress reviews of the plan should consider the resource implications
of agreed actions.




Page 9

8. Head of Legal Services Comments
8.1. N/A

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1. N/A

10. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments
10.1. N/A

11. Consultation
11.1. N/A

12. Service Financial Comments
12.1 See Chief Financial Officer comments

13. Use of appendices /Tables and photographs
13.1. Appendix 1: Glossary of Terms

13.2. Appendix 2: Safeguarding Plan Milestone Summary Report, February 2011

13.3. Appendix 3: Ofsted Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children
services report, February 2011

14.Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
14.1. JAR Report (December 2008)

14.2. Annual Performance Assessment (December 2008)
14.3. Inspection of Progress in the Provision of Safeguarding Report (July 2009)

14.4. Inspection of Progress in the Provision of Safeguarding Report (February 2010)

14.5. Unannounced inspection of contact, referral and assessment arrangements
9September 2010

14.6. Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children services report (February
2011)




Page 10

1. Background

1.1.1 Since January 2009 the Safeguarding Plan has been closely monitored and
regularly refreshed to incorporate the latest findings from Ofsted inspections and
Serious Case Reviews. In October 2010 senior officers from across the
partnership came together to take stock and review the plan in light of the
changed political and economic climate. The partnership was clear that even
during a time of financial pressures they would prioritise safeguarding. The
result of this workshop was the development of the refreshed Safeguarding Plan
which was launched in December 2010. Progress to date against this can be
found in Appendix 2.

1.1.2 In January 2011 Ofsted and the Care Quality Commission undertook a two week
announced inspection of safeguarding and looked after children services.
Inspectors noted that ‘improvements reported after the last unannounced
inspection of the service in August 2010 have been sustained’ and that 'highly
visible and committed leadership within the partnership, including the LSCB and
Haringey Children’s Trust, has strengthened safeguarding systems over the past
18 months’. Many of their judgements say that our work is adequate; however,
in 9 of the 22 judgements they make, they say we are ‘Good’ and have made
“sustained and significant improvement” since 2009. No areas were judged as
inadequate. Their overall judgement for Capacity to Improve is ‘Good’ for both
Safeguarding and Looked After Children. These two judgements are extremely
important and compare favourably with those local authorities who have been
through a similar inspection, though inevitably some have done better and some
not so well.

1.1.3 The announced inspection was the first in recent years to include our looked
afterchildren’s services—and-—this—will be reflected—in the—Safeguarding—and
Looked After Children Action Plan, which will replace the Safeguarding Action
Plan. The inspection report included 9 areas for improvement for safeguarding
and 5 for looked after children, which are to be addressed within 3-6 month
timescales. In response senior officers from across the partnership have
identified actions and milestones which will meet Ofsted’s requirements and
improve services delivered to our children and young people. These will be
included in the refreshed plan, alongside some of the actions from the
December version.

2. Next Steps
2.1.1 The areas for improvement and findings identified by Ofsted will be incorporated

into the Safeguarding and Looked After Children Action Plan and this in future
will be reported to Overview and Scrutiny twice per year.



Page 11
Appendix 1

Overview & Scrutiny

Safeguarding Plan — Glossary of Terms and Acronyms

AFI
APA
C&YPS
CAF
CAIT
CAMHS
CiC

CiN

CLU

CP
CPP

CT
CTEMPG
CYPP
DCSF
DV

ECM

FRMAT
Fll
FWi

GAG
GOSH
HCT
HSP
JAR
LAA
LAC
LC

LCT

LPM
LSCB
MACIE
MARAC
MAPPA

Area for Improvement

Annual Performance Assessment

Children & Young People’s Service

Common Assessment Framework

Child Abuse Investigation Team

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service

Children in Care — children in care to the local authority

Children in Need — children in receipt of a service from Children &
Families after assessment identified a particular need

Children With Disabilities (looked after under a series of short-
term placements)

Child Protection

Child Protection Plan — the agreed plan by which the statutory
(and other) agencies will protect a child from significant harm,
agreed at a multi-agency child protection conference

Children’s Trust

Children’s Trust Executive Performance Management Group
Children & Young People’s Plan

Department for Children, Schools & Families

Domestic Violence

Every Child Matters — government initiative with 5 themes of
activity to focus activity in support of children and young people
First Response Multi-Agency Team

Fabricated or induced iliness

Framework-l — computer system used for children & families
casework

Gangs Action Group

Great Ormond Street Hospital in Haringey

Haringey Children’s Trust

Haringey Strategic Partnership

Joint Area Review

Local Area Agreement

Looked After Child(ren) — children in care

Leaving Care — usually referring to that group of children in care,
over the age of 16 and still in receipt of services or support
Leaving Care Team — the specialist team that take responsibility
for (most) children in care from age 16 and see them through to
the end of their care episode. The team helps to find
accommodation and either work or continued study.

Legal Planning Meeting

Local Safeguarding Children’s Board

Multi-Agency Child Investigation Exercise

Multi-Agency Risk Assessment Conference

Multi Agency Public Protection Arrangements



MPS
NMUH
NAI
NQSW
Ofsted

PCT
PEP

R&A
SCR
SPE
SPSG
SPPP
SW
UNM

Page 12
Appendix 1

Metropolitan Police Service

North Middlesex University Hospital Trust

Non accidental injury

Newly Qualified Social Worker

Office for Standards in Education — undertake inspections on
children’s services including safeguarding

Primary Care Trust

Personal Education Plan — required for every looked after child in
education

Referral & Assessment

Serious Case Review

Single Point of Entry

Safeguarding Plan Steering Group

Safeguarding Policy & Practice Panel

Social Worker(s)

Unaccompanied Minor(s) — children under 18 who have come to
this country from abroad without a parent or other attached adult



Page 13

J19y3 bunp ‘quapisal uou
10 Juapisad ‘Ajlwes e Y3Im paA|joAUl
s9jew jJo 9]0J ay3 03 adueiodwl

BEIEETINYY |enba aAIb sapuabe |je wody Jje1s

uolLIe oed3 uQ - 110 Atenagod TT0Z INC TE| TTOZ Uer TO|3ey3 a4nsus 03 aoe(d ul swsiueyos|y

(92940

¥DS) #00¢Z PV UaIp[iyD TT U0IIILS

pue 010z Abaless Jjuswabeuely

"ueld uondy usJpliyo XSy DS 3u3 Ul Ino piej

1914y pax o007 pue buipienbajes ayl so|dipuiad ay3y yum aul| ul ao130ead
JO U0I329S YO 9Y3 ul papn|dul suojjoe jJuswissasse Asuabe-13nw Jojuow sisi Buibeuew
ybnoJog a3 UileH a19gqad| Aq papasadns a4 ||Im 2u03sa|iW SIyL TT0Z INC TE| TTOZ uer 10| pue aAoidull 0} pappaquid SWalsAS pue Buissasse
ssoJoe papiaold '9J9YMIS|D paquud ‘BuiAjiauspl
aJle Ajjenb 03 AemJapun 3Jom Jaying ‘gvs sapuabe sidinw| ul ,22130e4d 31599,
ybiy e jo saoiAIeS JI3J93YM | pue gDS1 03 usaaqg sey pue pai|dwo) .@_ ssoJoe pasiubodal pue padojoAsp Bunusws|dw]
Buipienbajes| 2dnoeld POOD uorepn ‘PaAdIYdY - TT0Z Aleniqag TTOC 9°4 8¢| 0TO0C unf 1O AbajeJys Juswabeuew siy (+0'v) 10°6

pea7 ajeq Mejls

awod3InQ awlYyL QUO03S3IN 910N ssa.4bo.d sniels 9jeq ana pauue|d QUO0]}S3aIN uopy

Aabuliey

paA31yde aWodIN0
paJisap pue pa3a|dwod uoPy

pa3a|dwod
9 03 »oeJ} uo pue ssaiboud uj uolPy

S9NSSs| ssalppe 03
paJinbau juoddns ou 3ng 2oeJ3 uo JoN

Sanss| ssalppe 03 padinbau
1oddns »2e43 Uuo 10U / paAalyde 10N

® IA O

snjels uoidy

TT10C ydlen 0 :uo pojedausn

TTOC
Aieniqaq 110day 2uo03sa|inW ueld buipienbajes -z xipuaddy




Page 14

AJuap! 03 HET SAAD Ul pea| S|ooyds
pue uo139330.d PJIyD J0) 3SINN paweN
‘321A18S BUISINN |00YDS YIIM HIOM

(¥ 099 O ¥DS) passaippe
O ¥OS ul payybiybry sasanu
|0OUDS pue SJ03ISIA Uyjeay Buipiebau

pajuawa|dwi

se||3 auer| BulobuQ "yoea3 uQ - TT0C Atenigod TT0Z INC TE| OTOZ INC TO sanss| bulieys uonjewdoju| pue paysijgeisa
SDIAIDS Y3 ed s3I ed
,__m:oLuw_U:M syioda. ueid pue _oosww mu__ﬁ_ﬁ
S|00Yds ul uaJpjiyd . butpJenbajes uiim pajelbajul co_umE.Lou_.c_
10 BuIpJenBajes 1d/ules qog pamalnal aq o) IT0Z INC TE| TTOZ uer 10 buizsodau soueldwod |enuuy Bunuasasd
ay3 spoddns paysiigeisa pue buipioda.
S9|1} 9SeD UsaMiIaq $9S4nU |00YDS pue S|00YdS UaamMiaq 0] yoeoudde
SsoJoe pea.l swisiueydaw bulleys uopjew.ojul JU33SISu0)
pue abexul| Jes|D| 92130e1d POOH| IIBUJRH qOg ‘PamalAal 3q O] 0T0Z 22A TE| 0T10Z d°S 10 pue buiuasaid ‘buipioday (80'%) €0°6
“40M 33 2nuijuod 03 Ajpusuewuad
SdAD Ul pappaquia 8q MoU |[IMm
pue JeaA 3se| bulinp siy3 yym ssasboud
9|qeJapISU0d Spew sey J03eulploo) & 9DUD|OIA D[3SOUIOP
AQ papuodss ay3 ‘swwesboud pue bujpienbajes jo buipueisispun
BEIEETINYY Mdom Buinuiuod pue juediiubis J23ealb e dojaasp 03 payioddns
uoliel| e sisiyl “joed3 uQ - T10C Atenuqad TT0C 9°d T€| TTOC Uer 10 S91jUa) S,uUsp|IyD pue sjooyds
(Z 29¥ D WDS) O YIS ul payniuap!
sanss| jo buipuejsiapun pue
& abpajmouy 2400 Aq pauuidiapun si
3 3243 2JNSUS 0]} POMIIADJ BOUS|OIA
A3pieQ [pyoey joedy uQ - T10C Aleniqag TT0Z INC TE| 0TOZ 224 TO dl3sawop 03 Yoeoddde bululed o1doad
10]1d YJomawe.y BunoA g uaup|iyd
VO dDS1 Mau eIA pa3sa) 9q 0} pienbajes
S9DIAIDS A1 *(swnuoy buipienbajes sjooyds 03 Ydom
Buipsenbajes /S943UdD S,uaJp|IyYd ‘SIONSIA yijeay) & 9DUD|OIA d13SBWop
yum pajesbajul pajJels sbuillas oi0ads 03 Inojjod - ,9o110eud
S| )dOM 3DUD|OIA paaJbe ua3sod pue busiiqg ‘sebessaw 3s9q,, buneabajug
onsawop Bulnsugz|  so1eld pooo [92d yedes A3y "desy uo - TT0Z Atenuqad TTOZ Unf 0| 0TOZ 2@ TO| PaleulwassIp O YIS woly buluies (20°v) 20’6
"SdAD pue suauped 3sni] yjjesaH
|PIUBA NPV UDDIMIDQ ABMISpUN MOU
>4oM |euonippe ‘SdAD ul siabeuew (+ 294 D ¥DS)
A9 Yum uaxepapun usaq sey & Bujuue|d uoide J1dyy ul sapuabe |le
BEIEETINYY Bbulieys uonewJaojur buipiebau yaom Aq passadppe O ¥DS ul paybiybiy
uolep| Jaymund oedy ug - TT0C Aenuqad TTOC INf TE| OTOC INC TO sanss| Bulleys uonewliojul
(8 234 O ¥DS)
SIY3 apn|oul 03 pspusuie 33|00}
}pne pue s9ss9204d JUSWSSISSe
peaT 2jeq Mejs
awod31nQ awaylL Qu0]1S3aIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 15

duel|al paonpay| 3di3deld poo| UileH aiqgaq 2o1oeld 1sagd, Aq paoejdal aq oL TT0Z 924 82| 0T0Z 30 T0| S|ooyds Buriojiuow 1oy swisiueydsly (ST'v) LO'6
papasu
J1 saanpadoid pue sassadoud
o puswe pue s9sed JO Uo[}e|eISd
o613 JaIlIes Ue Asjebbeg *M3IA3J 03 39A @duepualie Jenbau ay3 buiauanaid uj JUSWSA|OAUI sbunsaw
1e susWabue.Le uaJleyl| ON "joed3 uo 0N - TT0Z Aleniqad TT0Z ABIW TE| 0T0Z 30 T0 JO SSSUDBAIJO3JS MIIASY ases x|dWwod
isnqoJ ‘(3|1qe)ieae ul s|euolissajoad
Jo uonejusws|duwl 1s91l4ed) TT0Z Yo4ep buiuieny sbunesw yieay
ay3 ybnoayy puane 03 pax00q 3s.nN pajeubisaq & 9say3 ul (8s4nu pajeubisap JO JUBWDA|OAUL
ssa20.4d |eb3| uo As|ebbeg pue SJI0SIA UjjeaH 3isienads 10 paweu se yons) saAlejuasasdad 9y3 9seaJou]
duel|ad psonpay| 3di3deld pooo uaiey “joedy uQ - 110C Aleniqag TT0Z HelW TE| 0T0Z BNy 10 Yijeay jJO JUSWSA[OAUL eI (+T°v) 90°6
panoaduwii
2Je sbupoaw
Joj sjuswabuedie
9|doad uopediyiou
BunoA ® uaip|iyd 6_ pue paosnpal
Bbuipienbajes Apueoyiubis
AlDA1OBYD 'pIq ymmodb saoianosau aJe sigjsuen
J0J ajedouadde BEIEETINYY Aq panoddns paaube s|aAs| buiyeis [PEINETVEY ul sAejaqg
9Je s|jaAd) bulyjels| doeld pooD uollep "PRASIYIY - 0TOT 12quadaq 0T0Z 23d TE| 0TOZ uUnf TQ| swes) wid) buoj ul s|pAd| buljjeis (z1'v) S0°'6
"uUopuaH |ooyds buluieuy aA130932Q
yam bulobuo sauinbug ybnos
9q p|nom 3jdoad BunoA JO SMIIA & 3ybnos aq ued smalAIRuUl 3GV Joe
3yl moy 03 se awn siyi 3e bujobuo 9|doad BunoA pue ualip|iyd wo.y
Aejpleg suyD J4OM “joed] uQ - TT0Z Alenuer TToC InC TE| O0OT0CINC TO AdPeqpa3y) Iayidaym passasse Sdin
‘|lesodoud
9y} uo sapuabe usuiied wody pajuawadwii
uol3dadau poob 93ed1pul SUOISSNISIP & pue pado|9ASp SDUB.IBJU0D
I3193UYM | Ale3 "yeeMm T ul Yeap - Juswdopaaaq ased je p|iyd ay3 bunuasaidau S3IIAIDS
uollep ur "des3 up - T10C Adeniqgad TTOC 18N TE| 0T0C INC 1O Joj dwayds uoidwleyd s,p|iyd BuipJenbayes Ul
*9NP SUOI3R}INSUOD SDUDIDJU0D plesay aJ4e SMaIA
S9IIAIDS uoi3oazoud piyo 3sod ,Aes unoA J19Y3 pue paA|oAUl
Bbuipienbajes 9ABH | Jo uons|dwod Jo sisAjeue s,vdD pajuswsajdw] pue paujwialap Ajjuajsisuod
ul 0} papuodsal *Z "Ajpoys anp sbuipul uo podad & ssa20.4d Juawssasse buipienbajes| ale sjdoad HunoA
pue p.aeay S| 9J10A — UDEeMSpUN SJUBWISSISSE 910D /dD uo 3y} bulnp MalA s,a1doad BunoA pue uaup|iys
s,9|doad bunoA 13193y | >oeqpasy aAlb 03 ualp)iyd J10) swayds pue uaJp|iyd buipiodas pue buneay jeyy aunsug
pue ualpjiys| 9d13d5eld po0S uoLely | 130jid 'T "Oed3} UQ - TT0Z Aleniqag TTOC 4B TE| 0OTOC Unf 10 Al9A11D9445 S10W 10 SWSIUBYID (60°%) ¥0'6
‘uoljewoyul jo bulieys pue ssadoe
pue ‘abeuols ‘buipiodad ajelidoadde
peaT 2jeq Mejs
awod31nQ awaylL Qu0]1S3aIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpy




Page 16

pajioddns
INEJNRCENIES
9J0W S.I9pJOSIp
Ajijeuosiad yim

ue yym uaupjiyo buipienbajes

punoJe ssaualeme pasied SIy|
‘AsbulieH ul swea] jusawieal] SWOoH
9y3 pue Jels je pajabuaey sem bujuies
o141pads "uaupliyd buipienb ajes 03
piebaus yym Asbuliey ssodoe bujuieay

(s
99y O ¥DS) saljiwey @ uaJp|iyd ayy
03 papiaold Joddns ayj aoueyus 03

Se 0S S9JIAJISS pue Juoddns spasu
sisoubelp siyl yym juaded e yoiym
3e juiod ayj asiubodas 03 pamalaal

Jap.Josip
Ajijeuosiad
yum sjdoad

Joj uoisinoud

9|doad Jjo saljiwey UOoIJUSAIDIUT uopJloon 1no pa||oJ dAeYy yeis buipienbajes JapJaosip Ayjeuosutad yym sjdoad DIAJIDS JUBIIND
pue uaup|iyd Ale3| -sonug sjo04e) 9UL ‘PAASIYDY - TT0Z Adenuqad TTOZ Uer 10| TTOZ uer 10 10} uolIsinoLd DIAIDS JUBIIND M3IASY TO'0T
Bujuolss|Lwod (weans bujuoissiwwo)
juiol uo pes| 03 pteog buisq|am pue & 216938435 dS3H) pajioddns syafoud
diyssauped ay) A9|leg ueg yjjeaH mopeys ‘ue|d wo.j sAOWY 1102224 TE| 0OTOZ uer 10 Bujuolssiwwo) jo swwelboid SAALD
sso.oe pajedado 9|doad BunoA pue uaipjiyd| si bujuoissiwwod
INETNRRETIE] Bujuolss|Lwod 3|geJaulnA uo edwl syl asiwiuiw jey3 ainsus
9Je SIVIAIDS juiol uo pes| 03 pteog buisq|am pue 03 s39bpnqg bBuluoissiwwod| 03 Aj9Anesoqge||od
buipienbajes| 9213044 POODH A9|leg ueg yjjeaH mopeys ‘ue|d wo.j sAOWY 1102 292d TE| 0T0Z 292 TO| Ul SUOI3dONPaJ 93RUIPJIO0D Sidulled Y40M 60°6
juswabeuew
95D DAY
aJow pue saljlwey &
40 bpajmoudy Buiploda. paseg Ajiwed
pasea.bul Aspjeo jayoey joe3 uo - TT0T Atenigagy 210z unc 0| 0T0Z 290 10|  dO[aASP 03 21607 240D Yam siop | 32H281d 353G Yaim
03 buipe?) |ull ul st 3l jeyy os
panosdwi SDI|  d130BId Po0D | AS|RQ [aYdRY “joedy uQ - 110Z Aleniqag o.m_ 270z unf 0€| 0T0Z29@ 10| saseyd uswanoiduwll SIT N0 |0y | SOI dojaASd 8076
S|00YDS UIYyM udyepspun
Haules qog ‘PEMBaIARI] 2Q OL TT0C 9°4 8¢| 0T0C °2=2A 10 doue||dwod jo ypne [eRiul
"T10C Adenigad
woJ} TT0Z |1dy 03 buinow spasu
9jep ang 'pJledalods buipienbajes auyj
uo AJyauow papJ0ddJ S| SIIUBIDJU0D
uoI1399304d P|IYD Ik douepusne
9SINN |00YdS pue JI0USIA Yi|eaH &
"1702 |1dy Jo pus AqQ 3|gejieAe a9 ||Im
paJinbau aq
S3|NS3J - 9DUBIBJU0D dD 03 spodad pue
duepuslie 4o Jo ypne Alenuqgsad ayj _r_w\,_ wwu%m_&r"ow
263 JaIlIes Ue 10} Aemuspun AjuaJund S| U0I3I9||0d U3jeay ulyyim uaxepapun :_.uu:muc._mz_uo_ﬁ__
18 suswabuRLIR uamQ 326pug ejeq "yoedy uQ - 110C Adeniqad 1102 4dv 0| 0TO0Z 220 TO doueldwod Jo Jpne [eniul S|00UIS pue
isnqod ,dDS7 18 paJ0jluow dduepuae YJomawedy Juswabeuew | yjjesy usym pue
Jo uonejuswadwi pue pado|aA3p (Souaiajuod Qouewojlad ojul }Iing pue yeym buiAjued
ay3 ybnoayy uo3dazo4d pjiyd pue) sbunssw paysi|ge3Iss Sa2uUa.3juod U0i30930.4d paysijgeiss
ssa20.4d |eb3| uo ABa3jeu3s je aduepualie 104 spiepuels PIIYD Ul JUSWIA|OAUI Y}eay pue 9 03 {Jueping
pe97 2jeq Mejs
awod31nQ awaylL Qu0]1S3aIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d QUO0]}SdIN uonpy




Page 17

paau Jo spjoysalyl
Asbuniey

uaJp|iyd Aue Joy
4yD e axeuapun
[lIM s|ooyds

pue sa2JAI9S
yjjesy Ajlunwiwiod

343 YiIm aulj ul S,uaJpiys
opew aJle s|eJlasal ‘saujua)d
pue sjusawssasse sbuiyias (INd) uspuadapul S,uaJp|iyd
9jendouadde UOIIUDAIDIUT weyjog pue Adejun|oA ‘SieAld ul 4yD Aabuliey
pue AjpwiL Ale3 uosl|y ‘PaAdIYdY - TT0Z Aleniqag TT0Z AelW TE| 0TO0Z INC TO 404 swsiueyosw joddns JaAlRA| IV (T0°S) €0°0T
pamainal
(s221A49S) |00YDS pue sueaA Ajlles
b aaieD "pamalnad 9q O TTOZ Unf 0E| TTOZ uer TO| u29miaq syuswabuetse uopisued|
‘Bupjew
uolsIoap |ed0| 03 3[gns si swwelboud
9y3 JO aJmny dY) - sjooyds AyyjesH '4VD
pa3Ipa.20e aJe S|ooyds JO %06 '9|doad ay3 Jo 3nojjou
BunoA pue uaipjiy)d 104 3sibajedys pue juswdo|aAap
yieaH 2lignd Joluas ayy Aq pajioddns Q Jayny
¥JOMIBU YINoS dy3 Ul S243Ud) swojul syl
s,usJp|iyD 031 Ino pajjod buisq Apuadand ‘sswwesboud
Ayonuo S| sawwelbold siesA Alue3 AyyjesH awwelbold siea\ AyjlesaH SAISUDIUI
9 d||aues( 3yl ety uQ - T110¢ Adenuer TT0Z INC TE| 0T0Z dos 10| ay3 bundoddns AjaAdaya sjooyds pue |esJaAlun
SIOMIN Bbuipinoad
passno0j awo023no & 4iNOS PUE ULION Byl Ul Ino mﬁﬁﬂ%sﬁﬁﬂﬂm
218 UDIYM SIINIDS sel|3 suer )oea3 uQ - TT0Z Aleniqay TT0Z INC TE| 0TOC doS 10|  -pd||04 dwwelbold pliyd AylesH W60y
sleaA Alea jo ue|d plIyd AyyjesH
uoisinolad Aduabe UOIIUDAIDIUT & uonjejuswsa|dwi aa4be pue (G-0) ay3 paqug
-3INW 9AIRd343 Aped| ybum aaied ‘PaAdIYdY - TT0Z Aleniqag TT0Z INC T€| 0TOZ 4dv 10| Swuweiboid plIYD AylesH malnay (s0's) zo'ot
"PIIYd
3U3 03 XS JO JudwabeurwW SAI3IDYD
9jowo.ud 03 pue JusWSSISSe D13sI|oy ue
pie 03 J9pJo u] ‘921A49s BUlSIA YieaH
a3 se yans sapuabe Jayjo yum
Hulieys uonew.ojul jo souepodwi
93 UO uolerWIOUl UDAID S19m
Jjeis buluiedy siy3 UIYIIM "S2IAIRS
uaJ4p|IyD 03 |BlJ9ja] pue uo13a31ap 4O
ouepodwl By} pue adUd|OIA d)3sawog
'ssa004d DYV 2U3 uo siseydwa
peaT 2jeq Mejs
Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 18

*AJuo 10adse siea\ Ajde3 03 soie|ad

pappaquwia pasu Jo sia1y apisbuoje

oJojnuy 1zobN snjeis "yoedj uQ - T10C Adenaqoay IT0Z 48N TS| 0TO0Z d3S 10 sAemuyjed aued jo buipueisiapun
‘ale)
Adewlid J40j asanN paweN Aq 92130e.ad
d9 yoea 03 Ajdejnbad Juas uoijewolul
pue a2130e4d d9 AI9AS 03 J0JISIA O_ eaJle
Ua1eaH Mull AQ S1ISIA Uosiel| d9/JI01ISIA J19Y3 ul d|qe|leAR S9DIAIDS JO SJeme swaisAs-Ajod
UyyesH APlooamMg-{ BIA paAlIYdy Spew pue wa3SAS UOIJUSAIUI yym pajesbajul
YBLUM 311D 'PRAIIYIY - 0T 0T 4oquidag 0T0C 22d TE€| 0TOC AON TO Aj4ea ay3 ojul pajelodiodul sd9 ‘(LVIW) swes]
pauue|d sao1Al9s ajeludosdde ASusby-nINi
ERIVSEN 01 (LAW) swea]
uonUaAIRIUI pue diysiauied ea.e yoes 1oj Adeundiosig-nini
>_me. m.>_uuwtw. oJojnuy 1zobN ‘papusawe aq 03} pea] TT0Z 4dv 0E| OTOZ AON TO pauiauapl spasu uonendod |20 EH.E .m.c_.>oE
pue juapIiyd ‘(10303410 AIndaQq) asnoq uer Aq Bupjiom
aJow e 03 buipes| ybnoayy pes| 3om 1 A J9pImM 104 peaT pajelbajul
Buyiom Aouabe UOoIJUSAIDIUT *AJuo 10adse siea\ Ajde3 03 saie|ad n& $924N0S31 pue 92104{I0M Spn|dul 03 dojanaq
-19ju] pajesbajul Alde3| osojnuy 1zobN snjeis "yoedj uQ - T10C Adenaqoay TT0Z JelW TE| 0TO0Z unf TO| paddew sa21AI9S uoIjUIAIDIUL Ajlle] (+0°S) 90°'0T
sbuyas |esiaalun pue
‘Adenugad 1st uoisinold 3sijeidads pue pajabae)
dnoub Abajeuls bupjiopy pajesbajul wI0Jj uoljewW.IOojuUl JO UoI3en|eAd 5
Je payied aq 03 - Jaquiadag ul dnoub .0_ AqQ pawuojul ‘pajuswajdwi o cwc._w_w%:mw_r_u
seale [220] Ul weyjog | uonejuswa|dw] bupiopy pajelbajur je pue pado|aA3p 4yD 104 dlomawedy ww:w;totwa pue
s301A3s dn Um:_ow uosl|y | paa.by 'pansIydy - 0T0TZ 1dquadaq 0T0Z 22d TE| 0T0OZ 3P0 10 juswabeuew souewWIOIDd BuipueISIopUN
BuraaAliep bupiom yodep ‘3104 3y3 dojoAsp
diysiauyied uonuUaAIRUI weyiog Jo pua suibaq buiuiely pue pauies 0_ 0] anupuo)d
pasueyuz Ae3 uosl|y| siaule| ‘pandIyoy - TT0Z Ateniqad TTOC 9°4 8¢| 0TOC ver 1o Ino-pajjod Bujule.y s10ssasse 4D (€0°5) so0°0T
'3|qeJdaulnA ysow
pasu Jo m_w_wmmm_\_mﬁ ‘ue|d s1y3 wouy paddoup a1oja49y] 5 ww_wm_M:mmﬁwmm
U1 yIMm wc.__ F__.__ pue juawdo|aA9Q 32J0PHOM ISNJL padojaAap SaDINIDS >_H_uu“wn_ >wc%om
spew m;m.m_mtm.cw‘m AspieQ |ayoey| s,uatpjiyd Jo 1ed se 3no paded aq o] TTI0Z 48l TE| 0T0Z 30 TO| |esdaAlun Jo) swwedboud bBujuied) mmc_.ﬁwm _.mme>_c:
pue sjudWssasse ‘ue|d siy3 wouy paddoap aJ10jo49u3 UIY3IM S921N0Sal
jerdoudde uonuUaAIUI pue juawdo|aAaQ S2J0OM ISNJL pa39|dwod SIDIAISS |BSIDAIUN 3y3 Sn20Joy
pue AjpwiL Apeg|AspieQ |ayoey| s,ualp|iyD 4o Jed se Ino paliled 3q o) TT0C 9°4 8¢| 0T0C INC 1O 104 Judwissasse spasu bululed| (z0's) v0°01
ul abejs 3s414
23 se ‘s|geJau|na
Qg 03 JopIsuod
Aay3 jeyy
pea 2jeq Mejs
Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 19

dn paulol pue suopuatalul
Adusbe-i3inw bulisAlBp splemoy

4O WNNUI3U0D
pue spjoysaJu}

suonUaAIIU isnoQ uer Joedy uQ - TT0c Adenaqgag TT0Z INC TE| TTOZ uer 10 Buiarow aue swea] jeyy ainsuj 10 s103d1IISap
AJojniess Joy . ‘Aba3eays
pasu a3 Jnoyum isnoq uer )oedy uQ - 110¢ Atenaqag & 0T0Z 22d TE| 0T0Z dos 10 swea} Jo uoisodwod MIIADY aAneIUBADId
pue Jajjies Jpw 'suononpad 3196pnq 9yl yym paubie
aJe spaau jeyy os 0] paul| SUOI3RINSUOD SNOLIBA Y] uolisinold 321AI9S
Al4ea bujuaauaiul pue swuweuboid ,Asburiey bupjuiyyl & JOo wnnupuod
S90IAIDS pajabuie] uonuUaAIUI -9¥, @243 ybnouayy palaaiap buiaq 9U3l M3IADY
pue uoijuaAald Alde3 ishoQ uer S| SIYyl "joed3 uo 110¢ Atenaqaq 0T0Z22a TE| 0OTOZ UNC TO S$94Nn30NnJ43s Juswabeurw MaINDY (£0°S9) 60°0T
¥oed3 uo
ishoQq uer Joedy uQ - TT0C Adenaqgag &_ TT0Z 292 TE| 0T0Z unC 10| AbBajeuls aApeIUBA3Id JO AJdAIIRQ
JeaA |eipueuly mau jo bujuuibaq
104 pauue|d 3Jom Jayng ‘sainssaud & 5
1obpnq Jo 1Xa3U0d UIYHIM MBIASI Japun oeay uo Abajeays uoddng
i3snoq uer| Abajenys yoedj uQ - T10C Adenaqoay TT0Z 22 TE| OTOZ unC TO| Apweq pue bunuaded jo AJSAIRQ
S9DIAIDS *PaA3IYOR Ud(q dARY SUOINPaJ Jiels Abajens
UOIJUDAIDIUI Jo sabugjjeyd uswabeuew ajeipawwl] TT0Z Joqwadaq Aq 3s9q 9AIIRIUDADI]
Al dea ul AjpARdaye 90UO0 UdeJBpPUN q 03 YJOM Jay3lind ay3 3sbuowe aq 03 uonedidse yym 3y3 JaAl9p 03
paJaAlap *saunssaud 396pnq JO 3IX23U0d UlyIM &H_ aul| ul ‘siISAjeue 921N0SaJ pue Spasau | S924n0saJd Ajijuapl
2o10eud 3s9q pue uonuUaAIUI MB3IADJ Japun aJe sjusawdjd ||e Ing JO JJnsaJ e se pasiliold-ad suonoe diysiauyied
Asuouw Joj anjep Al4e3 3snoq uer| 3oeay uQ "yoedaj uQ - T10C Adenaqoay TT0Z JeIW TE| OTOZ AON TO| pue pasiaaa sueld uoioe Abajesis|e sy (90°S) 80°0T
'S9J3UdD) S,UdJP|IYD pue siedA Ajues 03
pajejad suoispap 19bpng buinuswas|duwi
uo BuIsnd0y SI oM Jualin) padojanap
‘e|jnw104 Buipun4 91buis sueaA Alle3 n..m_ ABa3jea1s sueap
paJanljop Abajeais UOIIUDAIRIUT buiyuoddns pue paaibe Adljod SieaA oed Al4e3 Aouabe
siea\ Alue3 Al4e3 ysnoQ uer Al4e3 peay uQ - T10C Atenaqgod TT0Z 22 TE| 0T0Z ung TO| uo Abajens siesp Alde3 jo AJsAlRQ -IINN £0°0T
"1e3A |epueUl
M3U U] Swea)} 9say3 Jo uojisodwod
9y3 03 usAlb 9g 03 UOIRIDPISUOD
Jayng "eade 3IoMIaN S,ua4pjiyd &
yoea ulyiym |euonelado swea) diysiaujied eale yoes uiyym
isnoQ ue( 1dIW ety ug - TT0C Adenuqgad TT0Z BNy 1| 0T0C doS 1O pa331e20|-02 swea} Aduabe-nIniy
6T - 0 dwwelboid p|Iyd AyjesH
i3shoQ uer & 93 93e40du0doul 03 paqlldsap pue
/ sel|3 auer joes3 uQ - TT0Z Aleniqay TT0Z 4dv 0| TTOZ uer 10 pado[oAap || 404 49440 240D, BYL
(10323110 AIndaq ) 3snoQq uer
ybnouyy pes| 3iom ] g J9pIm Joj pea
pea 2jeq Mejs
Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 20

diysiauped ayy
ssoJoe siabeuew
Jo1uas Agq dAD

9JoJ4 bunuaied
21e410d.40d

9y} 9ouryUD 0}
papuedxa awayds

410J Ajjigisuodsau IsnJg s,uaJpliyd suoidwey)
pue jo diysiaumo 9DOURUIBA0D SETEETITY 3y3 ssoJoe awayds uoidwey) Bbuipaenbajes
paseaJou]| pue diystapesa uolep Jjoedy uQ - TT0c Adenaqgag TT0Z 48l TE| 0T0Z dos 10| buipienbajes youne|-ad pue Malndy (€0'9) TO'TT

J1eaA |epueuly pado|anap uonuaaaid pue

M3U 404 pauue|d }JOM Jayng "MIIADI & uoI3USAIRUI Al4BD Ul S|O0YDS JO 3|0
Splepueis isnoQ uer Japun pedy uQ - T10¢ Adenaqag 1102 22d TE| TTOZ uer TO| ©y3 uo suopeyadxs Jo 39S e’ v S10042s
buipienbajes : ulyiym saianpadsoud
paJinbaJ 392w A3o24100 uoi3da3o.d pjiyd
sJapinoid a4edp|iys paJaAl@p bulaq jou aJe saunpadold| jo Buipueisiapun
pue siapuiwp|iyd *,594npado.d uo130930.4d plIyd paquuia Buipienbajes ssaym junodoe ue paquis
40 suopoadsul UOIUBAIRU] pue pueisiapun 03 S|ooYds 3sisse 03} 03 sJoutanob jooyds buipjoy pue dojaAag
pa3sjO IV Aldeg| 1Ludes gqog|aoe|d ul Ind suoinoe, Aq padejdal 9q oL TTOC INC TE| 0TOZ unf 10| 921A43s s,9]doad BUNOA 3 UaIp|IYD (11°9) 21707

*Jaquiaydas uj auop Ja1eq
9q p|nom uoledliqnd jeyl papiosap 9q & payslignd pue paalbe
00D SOy | Aew 3] oed3 uQ - TT0C Adenuqad TTOC 41BN TE| TT0C 9°4 10 sbules ||e 40§ S|9A9| pa}IPaIIdY
mc_wwm”wwmm . .>m>>MmUc: aJe & 5
paJinbal 3w 900D SOy SIISIA "dedy uQ - T10C Adendqad TTO0C 9°4 8¢| TTOC uUel 10| Sbullss |je 03 SjISIA UOIIR}IPaIddY SBUINIaS [00YdS
sJapinoid a4edp|iys dn —Uou J0j dWaYds
pue siapuiwp|iyd pamoj|oj bulaq aJe Jou SABRY OYyMm 3Soyy uoljejipasoioe
40 suopoadsul UOIUBAIRU] ‘sjuswissasse paja|dwod aAaey sbuiias & uoI3e}IPaJIde 104 JUDWISSISSe-4|9S ue dojanaq
pP33s40 11V Ae3 200D SOY|  JO %S6 "Moed3 uQ -TT0Z Ateniqad TTOZ 48N TE| 0TOZ AON TO| Pa39|dwod sbuds sjooyss-uou ||y (01°s) 1T°0T
94n3ny ul Joddns 03 suoResIuNWWod
Ajljige 4no uo peduwl [|9m Aew s3sod Bullen c@:%ﬂm
4921440 3udWdoaASQg bulpulwpiiyd T passaJppe
St buime.puiim 4o 3oedul & aJe uoisiaoud
3y3 49ASMOH ‘spaau bujuledy Jayuny sjuswalinbad E.mu.n__su
spJepuess 11943 Jo aun1did poob e aAey am pue Buiuieay buipasenbajes puny pue meUc_EU__su
buipienbajes Buiuiesy dn bupye; ade sispulwpliyd AJInj 03 Buinuiuod Jo S3S0D pue 10 mco_.uuwa.mc_
pa.inba. 195 00D SOy )oedy uQ - T10C Aldenaqag TT0Z 4dv 0€| 0OTOZ unf TO| Spaau bBujuiesy Joyny auiwua3Iag D21SI0
saapiAodd a4edp|iyd *24niny AqQ payniuapl
pue sJapujwp|iys Joj Bujuue|d ay3 Jo Jed se paemioy salpenbapeul
4O suonpadsul UOIUSAIDIU]T uaxe] 39 |[IM SUOI_N|RAS |eUORIPPY .0_ pais|dwod| By3 3ey3y ainsug
p331s4o IV Ale3 94000 SOy ‘PaAdIYdY - TTOTZ Atenuer TT0Z Uel T€| 0TOZ unr 10| Buluiesy jo 3oedull ay3 jo uonen|eas (60°S) 0T°0T
yoeoidde ‘spasu
peaT 2jeq Mejs

awod31nQ awaylL Qu0]1S3aIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpy




Page 21

9 03 SpPaau oM jeym Ajiauspl 03

SETEETIITY ‘p|ay SsuoIsSsnasIp (DVHVYIN) 90UDI3jU0D JUBWISSISSY
uolep Alle3 jdeay up - T10C Adeniqad TTO0C INC TE| TTOC Uer 10 dsiy Aouaby 1IN JO MIIADY
(€
29y O Y¥DS) U4p|IYd JO Spadu dy}
SJ9pIsuod A[d1idxs eyl yoeouadde
JAllwed yuiyg, e o4) JJomawedy vy e
& T :90npoid 03 pieog yaiym Ag sauop
9 03 SPaau YJ0om jeym Aji3usapl 03
SETEETIITY ‘pauels (DVHVYIN) 90UDI2jU0D) JUBWISSISSY
uoliel| 394 JON oed3 uQ - TT0C Atenuqad TTO0C INC TE| TTOC Uer 10 dsiy Aouaby 1IN JO MIIADY
(1 09y
0 ¥DS) padojaAsp yijeay |eusw
‘buads Burinp sdnolb pue 92U3|OIA 213SSWOop 03 uone|a.
juswabeuew pea| je uoIssnISIp n& ul Ajjeaijioads synpe pue uaJlpjiyd
BEIEETINYY pue YJ40Mm Jayinj spasu - paia|dwod yioq jo buipienbajes o3 yoeoudde
uorep }eig Pesy uQ - TT0Z Atenuqad TT0Z ABIW TE| TTOZ Uer 10 suidispun yaiym |0d0304d juior
*9IUI|0IA d13sawoq
10} sjuswabue.se ayj 93ed1UNWWOD
pue aujw.a3ap 03 uopisod
e ul 99 |[Im oM pieog bulag ||9M pue
Yl|eSH S,uaJpjiyd pue sjinpy mopeys
Buiwooyjso) ayj Jo uonejuswsduwi
39U} pue MalAdJ 9dUrUIBA0D S,d9pes|
[I2UN0D 3y} pUB [IDUNOD BY3 UIYHM Isnap
sabueyd |ean3onJis BUIMO||04 *SJUB|OIA & s,uaJp|iyD pue
disswioqg pue s,usJp|iyd 104 sispjoy dvs ‘DS au3 Jo
oljoj34od / Jaquiaw pea| ay3 yum sdiysuopje[al pue
diysiaujsed 9oe|d uax e} 9ARY SUOISSNISIP J3yng sal|Igisuodsau
ay3 ssodoe *dnoub buliaals ueld buipienbajes ‘sg|04
poojsiapun aJe pue gys /dDS7 1 passnasip usaq sey pa3edIuNWWOod pue paulw.d}dap| Sy 91edIUNWWO0d
1ey3 syuswabuelie 9DURUIBA0D uoydwoJd)| Ssuol3rpUSWWOIa] BUIIN0 Yym Jaded 9DUD|OIA D[ISDUWIOP S YINS SaNSS| pue dojaAag
Qoueulan0b aesn| pue diystapesa UIADY yeaq HpPesy uQ - T10C Atenaqgod TT0Z INC TE| OTOZ AelW TO Bui3and-ssoud 1oy sanjigisuodsay (90'9) €0'TT
buipienbajes
aoe|d 104 Joddns 10309s
ul swisiueyoaw Adejun|oA sjqeus
Buipjing Ajpeded dnouo 103095 | 03 syuswadinbau
pue joddns Adejun|op 3yl Jo dJom pue Abajenrs buip|ing
EYNRETIEN TR 103295 Auejun|op ay3y wody sbuipuly Aypeded pue
10309s Adejun|oA 9DURUIBA0D ‘pJeog buiag [I9M Jo jInsaJ e se p|ing Ajpeded| 9joJ 3yl AJ3uspI
93 J40J 9j04 Jeg|D| pue diysisapesT SIMO7 1939d| pue yjeaH mopeys Aq dn uaye} 8q o] TT0Z 22d TE| 0T0Z 224 10 03} paj4oddns 10329S Adejunjop (50'9) ZO'TT
peaT 2jeq Mejs
awod31nQ awaylL Qu0]1S3aIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 22

01

Buipnpul ‘1aqwiadaq/49qWSA0ON
ul 9oe|d %003 siebeuew J0j siapulWDI

4e3s yyesy pue
MJIOM [eI20S ||

SIIIO pue sbuiyaliq |esieadde piemdn siobeuew 101 SIUBWSBUBLIE
eddijiud ‘POABIYIY - 0T 0T 1oquadaqg 0T0Z AON 0S| OTOZ AON TO Jo |esieadde paemdn ajesodaodut 4 51 lesiesdde
218 M3lABJ ‘sydayd Ajljenb 9ouewlopad
s9|0J4 JI9Y} ‘sa3jed uola|dwod 3abaey buipnpul 2oe|d |enuue jo
widopad AjpAndae - Yode Ul 1IN 4'8D YIM passndsip pue & bupe] sjesieadde sosuew.ojiad uoijejuswa|dwi
0} paJinbaJ s||1s buiyyeis SIIIO pajjelp 9q 03 SIY] 40J ue|d "dNSS| ue JO Ajljenb pue Jaqwinu ayj aseaJsoul 9y3 a4nsug
9yl 9AeyY Jjels pue Ajpede) eddi|iyd | sulewsy joe43 uQ - TT0T Aleniqay TT0C 1eW TE| 0T0Z 224 TO| 03 papirod poddns pue adueping (s0'2) 10°CT
usJpliys
121)e pax00|
pue buipienbajes
JO uoidadsul
paosunouue
suoidadsul wody ‘ue|d UaJpiyd UV .0_ S,pa3SJ0 WOy
bunnsa. pasu pa»007 pue buipienbajes paysaljad uoadsul padunouue [ suoilepUSWLI0D3.
suoj3oe Jojiuowl 3y3 ojul pajeloduooul sbuipuly 3Y3 WOoJj suoljepuawIwIodal pue sbuipuly
pue sayiusapl 9OURUIDA0D) uol3dadsul wody bupnsal suoijoe pue bujpulj s,pa3sjO 03 asuodsad ul 9jeJ0dioout
diysiauned| pue diysiapesan SIM37 1919d M3N 'PIaAdIYIY - TT0C Aleniaqag T10Z 4dv 0E| TT0Z 9°4 10| podojoAsp SaU03IS|IW pue SUOIDY 90'TT
pasiwixew

sbuneaw sbunesw
diysiauyied 90URUIDA0D 'S24N30NJISad 0} NP MIIASJ Japun ale paull-weaJlls| diysiauyed aul|
Jo indinQ| pue diysispesT SIMOT 19394 | sbunesw |je se ue|d sy} wol) dA0WDY TT0Z 4dv 0E| 0TOZ AON TO|pue payiuapi sbuasw diysiaulied -wealls GO'TT
ueld
Buipaenbajes
doe|d ‘yolepw Yyt uo & paaJtbe| Joj sjuswabuelle
ul sjuswabuedie 9OURUJIDA0D paaJbe aq 03 syjuswabuedie buiuoday pue jno paddew sjuswabueuse 2o3ueulanob
buijuodaa ues|n| pue diysiapea SIM3T 4919d oedy uQ - T10C Adenaqgod TT0Z Y8l TE| 0TOZ AON TO buizuodaa ueld buipienbajes| ubisep-ay $#0°TT

(£ 29y O ¥YDS) ssouyeam jJo seaue

Aue ssalppe 0] uaxe)} aq 03 uooe

aJinbaJ pue uoppuny pue ssaooud

Q Jo Buipuejsiapun ue aJUapIAD

BEIEETINYY ‘panels ued jey3 Auinaos pue buriojiuow

uolel| 324 JON "oed3 uQ - TT0C Adenuqad TTOZ INC TE| TTOZ Uef TO| -0 WIISAS ¥ o€ DVUVIN JO MIIASY

(€ 29y O ¥DS) sojedsawn

pue spea| ‘suoioe salyiuapl

1ey3 ssaoo.ad bupssw pap.aodad

‘Je9d e Jo Juswdol|aAsp 3yl ‘7

:90npoud 03 pieog yoiym Ag suop

peaT 2jeq Mejs

Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 23

I

UM sull si yaiym
juswdo|aAsp

oJunp Jo ybi|
ul Juswdo|ansp

pue bujuiesy buiyels Modad oduny Jo 3ybi| Ul pamalnal pue bujuiesy
Buinieoal Jers pue Ajeded | AspeQ [ayoey joedy uQ - T10C Aleniqag TTO0C INC TE| 0T0C2=2A 10 juswdo|aAsp pue bulure. | M3IASY +0°CT
$955920.4d |043u0d abueyd
ybnouyy ue|d buipienbajes uiyyum
ﬁ_ pajesbajul pue padojaasp buisue
AspieQ |ayoey | "aA0ge Sy )oed} uQ - T10¢ Adenuer IT0Z 48N TE| 0T0Z AON TO SaNnss| Aue ssaJppe 03 SuoY
pajo|dwod
piepuels A3|eQ [ayoey| "dA0qe Sy ")oedy uQ - TT0C Adenuer & TT0C 41elW TE€| 0T0C unC 10 [9A3] 31e10303.Ip 1B %d3Yd Yj|esH
ybiy e 03 wuopad pa3a|dwod
0] wayy buigeus ASpjeQ |ayoey| ‘aAoge sy oedl uQ - T10¢ Adenuer & IT10Z 48l TE| 0T0Z unc 10 |9A3] DDIAISS 1B SXI3YD Y3j|eaH
S|00) Ur\_m SWI93ISAs po191dwon
SPEOPHOM Aspjeo ey | “anoge sy joesz ug - 110z Atenuer| 4 1702 48w 1€| 070z unt 10 [9A3] Wes) je syoayd yyeay| oD HIESH.
3|geyns ‘yoddns 2040 se] Y40M
40 uoisinold |9A3] WEea] pue JIAIDS |e1os jsuiebe
ay3 ybnouayy "ydJen 4o pud Ag paiajdwod ‘|lejuswliedap je padojaAsp ,MI9yDd SJUSWISSISSEe
pan|eA |93} buiyels 9q 03 - uoneledaid uoidadsul 03 anp Q UijeaH, 92404 »sel MS asuiebe J|9S eapun
JJe31s dJom |enos pue Ajpeded|AspieQ |ayoey| paAe|ag "yoedy uQ - T10¢ Atenuer T1T0C {8 TE| OTOZ unf 10 SjusWISSasse J|9s Jo swwedboud (60°2) €0'CT
(11Punod asn{
jou diysiauyied
109|J24 03 spaau)
J19y3aboy bupjiom
Buipueyuz
*9oe|dyoM
SIIIO ‘23ew|d diysiauned wwshupmc\w_m_mmmm
eddijiyd dlwouodd pabueyd 03 anp doug IT0Z 48N TS| 0TO0Z d3S 10 3Y3 SSso.oe U940 3Y3 youne panjea ‘oddns
a010Yd Jo J2Ao|dwd AsbulieH ul 19a4ed B AQ paUta)0|’S924n0sal punode
a3 se AabulieH saniunyuoddo pue Joddns ay3 13440 AsbulieH
MB3IA Jjeys Aousbe buiyyeis SIIIO ‘93ew|D uo paseq J3jj0 diysiauyied ssoud e 2y3 dojaAag
pue mau |el3uajod pue Ajpede) eddi|iyd Jlwouodd pabueyd 03 anp douqg TIT0Z 18N TE| 0T0Z Aew TO| se 1240 AsbulieH ayj dojaaap Ajn4 (80°2) zo'zT
‘syjuswabuelle
Buliojiuow ssuewlopad mau YJomawed) juswabeuew
JO JusWdO|SASP BU3 Ul papnjdul 3q 0} n.& Qouew.oad ulyjim uofa|dwod
yileH a1qgaq| deJ3 up "pesy ugQ - TT0eZ Atenaqag TI10Z 18N TE| 0T0Z Aew TO| |esiesdde uo Bunuodas ajesodiodu]
S e
ulewaJ pedwi pue axeidn |esieadde
piemdn Bupuswsa|dwi uo sjieysp
pea 2jeq Mejs
Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 24

4!

uopuo |eJ3ud) YMON au3 ul paalbe
9Qq 0} paau ||IM pJeda40ds Jo uolje|ndod
‘pledalods buipienbales ayj 919|dwod
0] JuswaJinbaJ uIeUOD S30RJIJU0D

Ajdeded ay3 si a4ay3 aunsua 03 dn
9)ew juswasbeuew souew.oad
MB3IARJ pue uopesiuebio

-94 buimoj|oj uonNgLIIUuOd

uuing alng 31NdYy "jdedL uQ - TT0T Adeniaqag TTO0C unf 0g| TTIOC Uer 10 s,Asbuliey SHN ubljeay
"pJ4edal00s buipienbajes |euiblio
s919|dwod AsbulieH ui HSOS pue
$92.4N0Ssal Qoue|dwod Buluiely uoi3dalold plyd
paonpaJ jo awi pue bBuiyels isierdads splodad 3snd|
e bulinp pasAjeue yijesaH |ejusy ‘buiiss |eydsoy ns o3
pue pa309||0d pJedaJ0ds paydepe sa19|dwod |eudsoH .0_ juswabeuew
INEJNRCENIES uolbunyym ay3 ‘souejdwod bujuieay SIsnJd] SHN || ul paAoaduwi Qouewogad
uoneuw.ojul uoa304d plIyD pue buyiels isijepads u01309]|02 e3ep JOo Ajllenb aunsua diysiauyied
juswabeuew juswabeueyy SpJ0odaJ |e}IdSOH X9S9|ppIA UHON pue uopjesiuebioal SHN JO IX23U0D - SSO0JD UdPIM
duew.0oIad SouewW.IolI3d uuing alng 3yl "pandIydy - 110Z Alenuer 0T0C 2@ T¢| 0T0C Unf 10 UIY3IM UOI3O3]|00 BlBp MIIADY (s0'8) zo'eT
"yoJaep
IsT 404 pa|npayds ‘dnous Absjens nM_ paJinseaw 4y
v weyjog Burydop pajedbajul yode je passbe 03 103[gns usaq aAey oym ajdoad
JO SSBUBARDBYD uoslly| 29 ||IIM "joed3 uQ - TT0Z Adeniqag TT0Z 4eW TE| 0T0Z 3P0 10| bBunoA pue uaip|iyo Joj SBWOdINO Juswabeuew
Jo Buipuejsispun pajuawa|dwi Qouewogad
J21e046 jJuswabeuely weyiog .0_ pue padojaAap 4yD 104 dJomawe.y 4vD dojaaaq
e sey diysiaulied 90URWIOLIDd uosl|y ‘PARASIYIY - 0TOT 49quaddg 0T0Z22a TE|l 0T0Z PO TO juswabeuew 9ouURWIOLDd (80°8) TO'ET
‘pawil-aJ 9q o]
'SI9J0M |BIDOS pue 321|0d Yioq 10 01|04 243 WO} doueysisse
Burureay ayj 3ns o3 pajlepowsa. buisq .’ yum pajojid pue padolaAsp
AJ3uS.und S| pue 9JUIISIXD Ul S| SINOD 19>10M |RID0S 104 ,S||IXS DAI13019p, Buies
Aepieg suyd V ‘PaA3lyde 10N - TT0C Adenuer TTOC ver T¢| 0T0C22d 10 pue bupjuiyy oIsuaJoy uo bujuied| 10 ucwucow _.ucm
Jieis pauljano (AQ U0 Jieis uiedl| spoyisw AJaAlRp
juazadwod Alybiy buiyeis ‘Abajeuys Juswdojanap pue bujuled| 0] stobeuew bujuiesy *a71) bujuiesy 9AIRAOUU]
pue pauleJy |[9M pue Ajpede) | AspeQ [ayoey Jo ued se dn paxoid aq o] - douQ IT0Z INC TE| TTOZ uer TO| BulidAlSp 104 SPOYIDW DAIIRUIDYY dojanag 90'¢T
S904Nn0sal
pasnpal
$92.4Nn0sal (s3196pnq paseq JO dwin e Joy
paonpad jo & 9oe|d {sa01Au9s padeys ‘buiddew | AusAlIBp DDIAIBS
QW] B ul S9DIAIDS Asuunol sswo3snd {Bupjiom Adusbe J10j spoyjaw
9AI309}J2 SAI903. buiyels -Inw a°1) padojaAap AJaAlRp dAleUIDY R
SJ9sn IAIDS pue Ajpede) SIMaT J939d yoedy uQ - TT0C Adenaqgag 210229a 1€l TTOZ Uer 1o DIAIDS dAIRRUIDY R J0J suondo AJIUapI S0°CT
sabueyd
juswuJlanob 1odau
peaT 2jeq Mejs
Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 25

¢l

ue sey diystauied 2dURWIOMAd| YlleH a19gad 10} wa3sAs e, Aq paoe|dal aq o TT0Z 4dv 0€| TTOZ uer To| bHuweys pue buipiodal 4oj WISAS| e dojaaad SO'ET

(£ 29y D ¥DS) wea)

asuodsay 3sd14 Jo Juswdo|aASp

J1oj Abajedis syl wJojul 03 pasn O

Q YOS Wouy jJudes| suossa| pue (1Y

‘pauelIs ¥4) weal Adusby-i3 N asuodsay

13193y | siy3 buipsb ul Aejap swos - Aemispun 15414 Y3 JO SSDUDAIIDRLD By

uoLIe oed} uQ - 110 Aenagay TT0Z 4Bl TE| TTOZ uer T0|403uow 03 aoe(d ul Ind swsiueyos

2oe|d

‘anoge & ul SpjoysaJyy Jo uonejuswa|dwi

YileH a1qqaqg SY jded3 up - TT0Z Aleniqag 110z 4dv 0€| TTOZ 4dV TO Bunsay Joy swwesboud 3pny
: paldde

sp|oysaJyy jo uoiedidde
S921AJ9S uo3daj0ad Adusbe ninw 3533 [IIm Swiwedboud \Mwmw%ow NM_WD
oI m,.._u_>_wqu paway3 pasiAal siyy ‘awweuboud jipne & 2oe(d s Uw_ ,\‘,_> muu
w\_mﬂ.__mowa BUNOA JO M3IAJ Ul papn|dul 9 03 sypne Ul Sp|oysaJy3 Jo uojjejuawajdwii 0 c,.n_uu_um_E\_MuEu_
pue UsJp|Iyd YileH a1qqaqg dvD "jded3 uQ - TT0T Adenaqag 110C 4dv 0€| T1TOZ 4dV TO Bunssy 1oy swwesboud 3pny Aousbe m_m:_m.
9jelidoadde jsow padojaAap| JO smalnaJ Jaad
3y3 Jey3 Louednsse juswabeuey ‘suoljoe sp|oysaJy3 Jo uonejuswa|dwi Jo swweuboud
apino.d sypny duUeWLIOMRd | YlleH 3iqgad Yiomawely yvO Aq paoejdal aq oL TTOC 418N TE| TTOC Uer 10 Bunsay Joy 334|003 3pny| e dojPAdq +0°ET
s|eob
1Nno jo juswuiene

spoddns 4l peupuNe,
diysiauzted IeH a1qqe oedy ugQ - Atenaqge ad ad 1e29.400s buipienbajes diysiauipe |opo
ay3 ssoloe YileH a1qqaqg }oeqj uo - IT10C qad TTOC 4dv 0E| TTOC 44V TO| P 1P 3 Iy 1ed JusWwabeuew
douewJopad dnoiubgns aoueanssy Ajend 9ouewJopad
puibeuew 03 jJuswiabeuely & dD0S1 Aq paasbe pue padojaaap Aduabeuajul
yoeoudde 3snqoy QouewWLIOMRd| UlleH aiqgad Joedy uQ - TT0c Adenaqgag TT0Z JelW TE| 0T0Z 2924 T0| p4iedsJods bulpienbajes diystaulied dojanag €0°€T

Ajpeded ayy sI 949y3 24nsud 03 dn

9yew juswabeuew souewlopad

& M3IA3J pue uoljesiuebio

-394 HuImo||04 UOIINGIIIUOD S,3DIAIBS

Aejpieg suyp| -BulobuQ joedy uQ - T10Z Adenuec TTOC unf 0E| TTIOC uUer 10 92ljod uejijodolid|y ubijeay

Ajpeded ay3 si a4ay3 aunsua 03 dn

9)ew juswasbeuew souew.oad

Q M3IA3J pue uoljesiuebio

-94 buimoj|oj uonNgLIIuOd

SIMa7 1333d “joe.3 uQ - TT0T Aleniqay TTOC UnC 0| TTOC uUer 10 s,/1ouno) Asbuiiey ubijesy

"ludy wody Ajoeded padnpad se J40329S
peaT 2jeq Mejs

Qwod231nQ awYyL 9UO01S3|IN 9]0N ssa.4b0.d snjels 9jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpPy




Page 26

14!

S9DINJIDS SURDA
Al4e3 Buiaiedad
9|doad bunoA

*33007) S0y 03 sel|3 auer

S3DIAIBS
sieaA Ajdeg Jo sousiiadxs sjusid

ueid

uoi3dazodd pjiyd
e 03 309[gns jou
aJe 1ng SaVIAISS
SleaA Alle3
paoualadxa aAey
oYM uaup|iyo

J0J sawod3ino

pue USIPIIYD 9%00D SOY| wod) papuswe pesa] "TT0C Adenaqad T10Z 224 TE| TTOZ uer 1o Bbuibneb 10y padojaAsp poyis JojuowW

10} Sw023No juswabeuey '9X00) SOy 03 Sel|3 auef padojaAap SUOIIUSAIDIUI pue dojaAag

panoJsduwii Qouew.o4lad 9%00D SOY| wodj papuswe pesa] "TT0C Adenaqad TT0Z 29 TE| TTOZ uer TO| S4eaA Al de3 Joj saunsea|y ssa20ns (£0°8) 90°€T

diysiaupned

ayj ssouoe

paijpne pajipne usaq

buiag sased oe(d ul 9AeY SO\l 9sed

Jo abpaimou ,(TT0Z go4 pa1siO) saipne pue padojaaap diysiauped ayl Aq| yoiym buipiodal

panoaduwi jJuswabeueyy uo buiiodad pue bupenjeas ‘buie|jod pajipne uaaqg aAeY S9|1} 9SED YdIym J10J wa3lsAs
peaT 2jeq Mejs

awod31nQ awaylL Qu0]1S3aIN 9)ON ssa.dboid snjels ?jeq ana pauue|d 9UO01S3|IN uonpy




Page 27 .
*XK
CareQuality Ofsted
Commission raising standards
improving lives

Inspection of safeguarding and

looked after children services
London Borough of Haringey

Inspection dates: 10 to 21 January 2011
Reporting inspector: Martin Ayres

Age group: All
Published: 25 February 2011



Page 28

© Crown copyright 2011

Website: www.ofsted.gov.uk

This document may be reproduced in whole or in part for non-commercial purposes, provided
that the information quoted is reproduced without adaptation and the source and date of
publication are stated.

Further copies of this report are obtainable from the local authority or at www.ofsted.gov.uk



Page 29

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 1

Contents

About this inspection
The inspection judgements and what they mean
Service information

Safeguarding services
Overall effectiveness
Capacity for improvement

Safeguarding outcomes for children and young people
Children and young people are safe and feel safe
Quality of provision
The contribution of health agencies to keeping children and young people

_—OW ouuull W N N

—

safe 14
Ambition and prioritisation 18
Leadership and management 20
Performance management and quality assurance 21
Partnership working 22
Services for looked after children 23
Overall effectiveness 23
Capacity for improvement 23
How good are outcomes for looked after children and care leavers? 26
Being healthy 26
Staying safe 27
Enjoying and achieving 29
Making a positive contribution, including user engagement 30
Economic well-being 31
Quality of provision 33
Ambition and prioritisation 35
Leadership and management 36
Performance management and quality assurance 37

Record of main findings: 39




Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

Page 30

About this inspection

1. The purpose of the inspection is to evaluate the contribution made by
relevant services in the local area towards ensuring that children and
young people are properly safeguarded and to determine the quality of
service provision for looked after children and care leavers. The inspection
team consisted of four of Her Majesty’s Inspectors (HMI) and one
inspector from the Care Quality Commission. The inspection was carried
out under the Children Act 2004.

2. The evidence evaluated by inspectors included:

discussions with children and young people receiving services, front
line managers, senior officers including the Director of Children’s
Services and the Chair of the Local Safeguarding Children Board,
elected members and a range of community representatives

analysing and evaluating reports from a variety of sources, including
a review of the Children and Young People’s Plan, performance data,
information from the inspection of local settings such as schools and
day care provision, and the evaluations of a serious case review
undertaken by Ofsted in accordance with the 2010 'Working
Together To Safeguard Children’

a review of over 60 case records of children and young people with a
range of need. This provided a view of services provided over time
and the quality of reporting, recording and decision making
undertaken

the outcomes of the most recent annual unannounced inspection of
local authority contact, referral and assessment arrangements
undertaken in August 2010.

The inspection judgements and what they

mean

3. All inspection judgements are made using the following four point scale.

Outstanding (Grade 1) | A service that significantly exceeds

minimum requirements

Good (Grade 2) A service that exceeds minimum

requirements

Adequate (Grade 3) A service that only meets minimum

requirements

Inadequate (Grade 4) | A service that does not meet minimum

requirements




Page 31

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 3

Service information

4.

There are 53,700 children and young people aged 0 —19 who live in
Haringey, representing 23.8% of the total population. The population is
diverse and 40.7% of children and young people are from minority ethnic
groups compared with 24% in the capital as a whole. The proportion of
children and young people whose first language is not English is 53.2% in
primary schools and 46% in secondary schools. Both the minority ethnic
and the English as an additional language groups are growing in
proportion. Some 30 nationalities are represented in schools in the
borough and over 123 languages are spoken by children and young
people. Haringey is the fifth most deprived borough in London, with
39.2% of children classified as living in poverty. The proportion of children
and young people entitled to free school meals is 28.9% in primary
schools, 31.5% in secondary schools and 41.1% in special school schools.
Infant mortality and teenage pregnancy rates have been high but are now
reducing.

The Haringey Children’s Trust is chaired by the council’s lead member for
children and young people. Haringey Council, NHS Haringey, the Mental
Health Trust, local hospitals, General Practitioners (GPs), the Great
Ormond Street Hospital partnership (GOSH), local schools, sixth form
centre and college, the police, the voluntary sector, Job Centre Plus, the
Youth Offending Service and the Chair of the Haringey Safeguarding
Children Board (HSCB) are all active members of the Trust. Between the
main meetings of the Children’s Trust, a smaller Executive Performance
Management Group meets with representatives from Haringey Council’s
Children and Young People’s Service, NHS Haringey, the police and the
voluntary sector. HSCB is chaired independently and brings together
senior representatives from the council's Children and Young People's
Service, NHS Haringey, local hospitals, GOSH, the Mental Health Trust, the
police, the Probation Service, the Youth Offending Service and the private
and voluntary sectors. Haringey has its own Youth Council, which meets
six times a year. The Youth Council is managed by its own Cabinet of
young people, which meets monthly.

Planning and delivery of services to children, young people and their
families is based on three Children’s Networks. These are geographical
areas covering the west, north and south of the borough. These networks
have enabled a strategic approach to assessing and understanding the
needs of communities and ensured that services are planned accordingly.
The delivery of services is, increasingly, through multi-disciplinary teams.

Planning and commissioning of universal, targeted and specialist child
health services and primary care are undertaken by NHS Haringey. Health
visiting, school nursing, children’s community therapy services and the
community paediatric medical team are provided by GOSH. The main
providers of hospital services, including accident and emergency services



Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

Page 32

10.

11.

for children and maternity services for children and families in Haringey,
are the North Middlesex University and Whittington Hospitals. Children and
families access primary care through one of 54 GP practices and the GP
out-of-hours provider, HARMONI.

NHS Haringey and Haringey Council commission child and adolescent
mental health services (CAMHS) from a range of providers. Emotional
wellbeing and CAMHS commissioning strategies have been developed in
partnership with community and other service providers, including schools.
Haringey Council commissions the Tavistock and Portman NHS Trust to
provide CAMHS to children in care. NHS Haringey, as the responsible
commissioner, funds local CAMHS for children in care who are placed out
of borough. Tier 2 targeted community CAMHS are provided by Open Door
and Barnet, Enfield and Haringey NHS Mental Health Trust and NHS
Haringey. Tier 3 specialist and Tier 4 highly specialist services are
provided mainly by Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental HealthTrust with
some additional services being provided by the Tavistock and Portman
NHS Trust. Specialist Tier 3 CAMHS learning disability services are
provided by Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental HealthTrust.

Referrals to children's social care services are managed by a dedicated
multi-agency screening team as part of the First Response service. An out-
of-hours social work team is available and it is shared with adult services.
Children’s social care services support 165 fostering households and two
children’s residential homes. Another home, providing residential respite
care for children with physical and complex needs, is undergoing
refurbishment. Other residential services and additional foster placements
are commissioned from registered and approved independent providers.

Multi-agency working and planning are established in the First Response,
Speech, Language and Communication, and Early Support services.
Dedicated health teams are aligned to the children’s network areas. The
partnership’s strong commitment to the formal joint commissioning of
services is demonstrated by NHS Haringey and Haringey Council’s Children
and Young People's Service joint funding of the Parent and Infant
Psychology Team, the CAMHS Learning Difficulty Team, and of placements
for children with complex care needs.

In December 2010, there were 303 children and young people subject to a
child protection plan and 600 looked after children and young people in
Haringey. This includes 40 unaccompanied asylum-seeking minors and 12
young people aged 16—17 who were presenting as homeless. The council
and its partners support 402 care leavers. There are dedicated teams
working with care leavers and children with disabilities. In December
2010, there were 1,296 children and young people with a Statement of
Special Educational Need. The 18 Children’s Centres bring together a
range of services for children under five and their families, such as family
support, health and education. There are 54 primary schools, 11



Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

Page 33

secondary schools, one academy, four special schools, one further
education college and one sixth-form college.

Safeguarding services

Overall effectiveness Grade 3 (adequate)

12.

13.

14.

The overall effectiveness of the council and its partners in safeguarding
and promoting the welfare of children in Haringey is adequate. Highly
visible and committed leadership within the partnership, including the
HSCB and Haringey Children’s Trust, has strengthened safeguarding
provision and systems over the past 18 months. The arrangements for
contact, referral and assessment of children in need or who are at risk of
harm are good and the improvements reported after the last unannounced
inspection of the service in August 2010 have been sustained. Effective
partnership working between council children’s services, health services,
the police, the voluntary sector and other agencies is helping to ensure
the early identification and assessment of children and young people in
need or who are at risk of harm. While much case recording, staff
supervision and care planning is now good, some variation remains in
their quality. Similarly, although there are examples of good practice, the
quality of assessments overall is only adequate. The deployment of social
work assistants in undertaking assessments, albeit well supervised, is not
consistent with national guidance although other statutory safeguarding
requirements are being met. Joint arrangements for the monitoring
children and young people who go missing are generally effective but do
not yet include a process for an independent de-briefing on their return.
Schools play an active part in helping to safeguard pupils.

Improvements have been made to hospital accident and emergency
systems that identify children and young people who may be at risk of
harm. The arrangements for training GPs in safeguarding are good, with a
designated safeguarding lead in each practice in the borough. However,
the attendance of children and young people at child protection review
medicals needs to be improved.

Rates of contact and referral to children’s social care services are higher
than the average nationally, and than in similar areas, and are increasing.
In part, this is due to improved awareness of the importance of
safeguarding in the borough and a growing confidence in its safeguarding
arrangements. Thresholds for access to services are well understood
across the partnership and there are good processes for escalation where
concerns about individual children and young people are not resolved
quickly enough. However, overall the high level of demand continues to
place pressure on services. Strategy meetings are appropriately convened
but attendance by relevant agencies and professionals is too variable.
Child Protection Advisers work effectively to chair case and review



Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

Page 34

15.

16.

17.

conferences, which are timely, but their role is too limited in respect of
quality assurance and overall service evaluation.

Following a period of high staff turnover and increased use of agency staff
to meet service demands, there is now greater workforce stability in the
borough and increasing pride in the work being undertaken. The
partnership has placed appropriate emphasis on workforce development
so that more staff are recruited and that they are suitably skilled.
Recruitment processes across the partnership are robust and appropriate
checks are undertaken before any employment commences. Staff
supervision records do not routinely identify personal development and
training needs and objectives.

The Common Assessment Framework (CAF) is being used increasingly and
there are good examples of effective ‘team around the child” approaches
in Haringey. The range of services now available to families in need has
been extended. However, increased work pressures and demands,
resulting from improved early identification and intervention strategies, is
leading in a few cases to delays in the allocation and completion of
children in need assessments. Managers continue to set appropriate
priorities and maintain an overview of incoming work. The partnership is
fully aware of this issue and continuously reviews staffing levels.
Commissioning processes for support services are generally strong and
reflect the emphasis placed by the partnership on service quality and
safeguarding.

The council and its partners demonstrate a strong commitment to
promoting equality and diversity. Equality impact assessments, identifying
those groups who have greatest need and monitoring the changing
demographic of the borough, regularly influence service developments.
The local authority works well with community groups to access hard-to-
reach families to ensure they are supported in accessing services and are
aware of safeguarding processes. Joint arrangements to respond to high
levels of domestic violence are good; however insufficient suitable
accommodation is resulting in some families who seek refuge being
housed in low quality accommodation.

Capacity for improvement Grade 2 (good)

18.

The capacity for improvement is good. The partnership has achieved
significant and sustained improvement in safeguarding in the borough
since 2009. Safeguarding awareness is now well established among
agencies and professionals and levels of contact with, and referral to, First
Response are appropriate. Overall, arrangements for contact, referral and
assessment are robust and have been strengthened by the co-location of
experienced police officers, health visitors and CAMHS workers within First
Response. Good improvements have been made in health provision to
ensure that vulnerable children and young people are identified and



Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

Page 35

19.

20.

protected from harm. Police engagement in safeguarding is how
comprehensive.

The partnership has a good awareness of its strengths and of the areas
needing further improvement. Additional resources have been invested to
strengthen safeguarding services. The council spent an additional £3
million in 2009—-10 and plans a further investment of £7.4 million in 2011-
12. Health services invested an additional £4 million in 2009-10. Staff
capacity is monitored closely and good workforce management and
development are leading to improvements in the overall quality of
practice.

Service users are generally engaged well in drawing up individual service
plans and in some aspects of strategic planning. A strong commitment to
equality and diversity is evident within all agencies working with children
and families in the borough. Coordinated and targeted action on long-
standing weaknesses, such as teenage conception and infant mortality, is
reaping rewards and rates are falling. Senior leaders across the
partnership demonstrate their commitment to continual improvement in
safeguarding and robust performance management systems are in place,
which allow for the monitoring of performance against key success
indicators. However, processes for overall and joint evaluation of services,
including in some key areas, are not embedded fully.

Areas for improvement

21.

In order to improve the quality of provision and services for safeguarding
children and young people in Haringey, the local authority and its partners
should take the following action.

Within three months:

. Review the deployment of social work assistants to ensure that all
assessment work fully complies with the requirements set out in
'Working Together To Safeguard Children’,

. Ensure NHS Haringey and partners reduce the level of non-
attendance at child protection review medicals and that attendance
rates are routinely monitored by senior health and children’s services
managers and HSCB

. Improve the attendance and participation of key agencies and
professionals at strategy meetings

. Ensure that staff supervision records are up-to-date and that they
include clear objectives for personal development and training.



Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

Page 36

Within six months:

Develop joint arrangements for the evaluation of services, including
the analysis of trends in the number of representations and
complaints, the work of the Local Authority Designated Officer
(LADO), strategies for family support and early intervention and
multi-agency work with children with disabilities who are subject to a
child protection plan

Ensure the timely allocation of all children in need cases and the
regular review of their service plans

Ensure that children and young people who go missing have an
opportunity to meet with a suitably designated independent person
on their return

Ensure that the quality of all case recording, staff supervision,
assessments and care planning consistently matches best practice

Improve the way that the Child Protection Advisers carry out their
quality control and assurance functions.



Page 37

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 9

Safeguarding outcomes for children and young
people

Children and young people are safe and feel safe

22,

23.

24,

25.

Grade 3 (adequate)

HSCB and the wider partnership have raised awareness and understanding
of the importance of safeguarding and child protection in the borough and
this has led to improved identification of children in need or who are at
risk of harm and the prompt referral to children’s services. Where children
are identified as being at potential risk of harm, investigations under
section 47 of the Children Act 1989 are, generally, undertaken well
although in a small number of cases there are delays in finishing all
relevant enquiries and completing records.

Children and young people identified as needing protection have detailed
child protection plans and most plans address specific needs and risks.
Children and young people are spoken to alone, where this is appropriate,
and the assessment of their needs takes account of their views. In the
most recent inspections of the three local authority children’s homes,
safeguarding was judged satisfactory in two and good in one. No looked
after children are placed in provision where safeguarding has been judged
inadequate. Safeguarding is given a high priority when services are
commissioned, as is the specification of safeguarding requirements in
contracts and in relation to monitoring contract compliance.

Families appreciate the intensive support they receive from the family
intervention project, which is improving targeted families’ relationships
and the risk of harm to children. Parents report that they receive good
levels of help to manage stresses in their own lives and that they
understand more about the needs of their children. A range of services for
families affected by domestic violence is readily accessible, including
practical support to make houses more secure, family support and
counselling, and art and drama therapy. Joint arrangements to respond to
high levels of domestic violence are good, but some families who seek
refuge are being housed in low quality accommodation because of a lack
of availability of more suitable refuge places. Perpetrators of domestic
violence can be referred to a specialist project for assessment and, if
assessed as suitable, they can be offered a place on a recovery
programme. However, there are insufficient places on the programme to
meet the current high level of demand.

The Young Carers project provides individual and group support to young
carers, who report that they value the services provided and that they
have good access to their project workers. The project is publicised well
and referrals to it are made by schools, GPs and by the general public.



Page 38

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 10

26.

27.

28.

29.

Young carers indicate that they feel able to express their feelings about
their responsibilities in confidence and they receive good advice and
support from the borough, including on keeping safe.

Young people attending the after-school study club said that they feel safe
in Haringey, although they cited instances of gang activity and substance
misuse where risks to their well-being are increased. The Care4Me survey
conducted for this inspection indicates also that children and young people
feel safe. HSCB is investigating why comparatively low numbers of
children with disabilities are the subject of child protection plans to ensure
that any safeguarding concerns for these vulnerable children are being
identified and investigated properly.

The LADO ensures that allegations of abuse against professionals and
carers are investigated in line with statutory requirements, consulting
appropriate agencies and tracking progress until completion of the
investigation. There has been some analysis of referrals made to the
LADO but this has not been reported to the relevant boards to ensure
either formal overview or understanding of issues. Parents, carers and
children are given adequate information about how to make
representations and how to complain about services but evaluation of
trends in these areas is weak. A 2009-10 report to elected members
recommended that action is taken in this area but this has not occurred
yet.

Processes for the safe recruitment of local authority staff are secure. Files
are in good order and contain relevant details of recruitment and
appointment process, including references. All qualifying staff have up-to-
date criminal record bureau (CRB) checks or their equivalent in place,
which are renewed every three years. Staff do not take up employment
until CRB checks are fully completed, apart from those who had a CRB
check in the last 12 months and who are moving to a similar post. Any
concerns identified through a CRB check are followed up but in a few
records the rationale for decisions taken as a result was not made explicit.
Staff records examined by inspectors did show that identity and
qualifications are checked. Workforce development, including training,
emphasises safeguarding and specific courses have been developed for
middle managers to support them in tackling the underperformance of any
staff they supervise. Safe recruitment is an integral requirement for
commissioned services and helpful guidance is available for schools for
their use when they employ agency staff.

Overall, good procedures are in place for sharing information between
services and for preventing, and responding to, the needs of missing
children. Increasingly, accurate reporting helps identify patterns and
trends among those whose circumstances make them most vulnerable, for
example young people going missing, engaging in self-harm or being
suspected of involvement in sexual exploitation, which are then



Page 39

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 11

considered on a multi-agency basis. Children and young people who go
missing and then who return home are interviewed routinely by the police
service. However, return interviews by independent people, either of
children and young people living in the community or who are looked
after, are not conducted routinely in accordance with existing local
protocols. Children and young people who are not attending school are
tracked closely by a designated officer from the education welfare service.
There is effective partnership working between this service and ‘Safer
Communities’ police officers, who undertake truancy patrols to reach
children and young people not in school. The movement of children
between schools is monitored and HSCB and the wider partnership are set
to undertake a review of elective home education and the implications of
this for monitoring the welfare of affected children and young people.

Quality of provision Grade 3 (adequate)

30.

31.

32.

First Response, the integrated service that deals with contacts, referrals
and assessments, is well organised. The CAF team is located in this
service and good communication between professionals ensures that
contacts not meeting the threshold for referral to children’s social care
services are redirected promptly to the CAF team. A recent drop in the
number of contacts reflects good cross-agency understanding of
thresholds for access to children’s social care services. The initial
screening of referrals to First Response service is robust and is very well
supported by the multi-agency screening team, which includes police,
health visitors, and CAMHS workers and this helps to ensure that
appropriate information is gathered promptly so that sound decisions can
be made about future action.

Staff within the partnership are knowledgeable and hard working but the
pressure on services remains high. Managers are ensuring that priority
action is taken to respond to those children and young people at greatest
risk of harm or who have greatest need. However, teams are at times
stretched to ensure that work is allocated in a timely manner. Some social
work assistants are undertaking initial and core assessments and,
although their work is well supervised by qualified and experienced social
workers, this does not meet the explicit requirements in 'Working
Together to Safeguard Children; which sets out that assessments should
be undertaken by qualified social workers only.

All children and young people subject to child protection plans are
allocated to social workers. Currently, all identified children in need cases
are allocated but there has been difficulty in ensuring that all such cases
are allocated and, in the recent past, gaps have existed for some of those
children and young people whose levels of need have been assessed as
lower. In some instances, pressure on services has led to delays in the
final completion of assessments within the required timescales and
recording. In a very few cases, there have been delays in contacting other



Page 40

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 12

33.

34.

35.

36.

agencies to gather the information required to complete the assessment.
However, managers do monitor the completion of assessments and review
priorities regularly. Systems for escalating concerns about children and
young people are in place and are used well by professionals across
agencies. Increased cooperation between services means that escalation
systems are rarely utilised.

Family support and early intervention services delivered through health
services, children’s centres, children area networks and a range of
voluntary provision are having a positive impact on, and facilitating
effective joint work to meet, the needs of children and young people. In
place across the borough, parenting programmes are well supported by
ethnically sensitive specialists, such as those working with Somali and
Turkish families. Pre-birth information is used well to identify vulnerable
families and to offer early support and advice. The Parenting Intervention
Psychology Service offers advice and support to parents on attachment,
separation and loss.

The CAF is increasingly used to assess the needs of children, young
people and families. Growing numbers of CAFs are completed and
appropriate support is arranged through the multi-agency CAF panel. The
use of the CAF is well embedded across the partnership, in particular in
schools and children’s centres and by health visitors. However,
engagement by midwives, adult services, and some voluntary agencies is
not fully realised. Social workers are using CAF processes more extensively
to ensure that support for families continues after the provision of services
to support children in need or to protect children from harm. Completed
CAFs are available on the shared information system, facilitating ready
access to details of previous involvement by agencies with families. The
ethnicity of families involved with CAF is monitored well and analysed to
determine whether or not take up properly reflects the borough’s diverse
population.

Notifications of domestic violence from the police are generally good and
improving; they contain appropriate information about incidents and show
whether the impact on the child has been considered properly. Details of
past incidents are also included and used to inform decisions as to how to
proceed. Notifications are not currently, or routinely, sent to health and
education services but plans are in place to introduce this practice. Joint
working between children’s services and the police child abuse
investigation team is good. Within the First Response service, strategy
discussions and meetings are held in a timely way but this is not
consistent across other teams and attendance and the quality of recording
are too variable. In some cases, repeated strategy meetings are held but
their purpose is not sufficiently clear.

The Emergency Duty team provides an effective out-of-hours service and
is staffed by experienced and suitably qualified social workers. Working



Page 41

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 13

37.

38.

39.

40.

relationships with other agencies, in particular the police, have

improved. Additional staffing at weekends has provided adequate capacity
to meet the increased number of out of office hours referrals. With the
exception of some historical and restricted records, full access to the
electronic recording system enables appropriate, safe and informed
decisions.

There has been a large rise in the number of cases requiring an initial
child protection conference. The number of children made subject to child
protection plans almost doubled between 2008/09 and 2009/10. Child
protection plans are usually clear and detailed and most are focused on
outcomes and highlight specific needs, risks, responsibilities and
timescales. Good work by child protection advisers has ensured that
almost all reviews take place within the expected timescales. The chairs of
child protection conferences provide clear, helpful and well considered
summaries of the key issues. The quality of written reports considered at
child protection conferences is adequate overall with some examples of
good practice but a few lack sufficient depth and do not present
information precisely enough. The engagement of fathers, particularly in
cases of domestic abuse, remains challenging although conferences use
the information available to explore different ways of engaging positively
with parents and carers. Details of children’s ethnicity and religion are
recorded routinely, and interpreters are used very effectively. However,
some opportunities to consider the relevance of ethnicity, religion and
culture when reviewing child protection plans are lost.

Scrutiny of individual case files shows generally good involvement by
relevant agencies, including health visitors, school nurses and teachers.
However, levels of participation by children, parents, carers and
professionals in core group meetings, child protection conferences and
reviews are not monitored, making it impossible for the partnership to
evaluate this fully. The views of children and young people are usually
available at conferences but there is no specific advocacy support for
children and young people to ensure that their voices are always heard.

In most cases, children and young people are visited by social workers
within expected timescales and the recording of visits is very thorough. It
is evident that children are seen alone, where appropriate, and they have
opportunities to make their views known. Records are generally kept up to
date. Interviews with social workers showed that they have a good
understanding of the issues involved in their cases and they described
clearly the work being done to reduce risk. However, written records do
not always reflect the extent of their good practice. For example, not all
case files have up-to-date chronologies and where they do exist they lack
detail.

An improved process has been agreed for the transfer of responsibility for
individual cases, between individual social workers and between teams,



Page 42

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 14

41.

and the arrangements for transfer is now adequate. Nevertheless, there
are still delays in transfer in a few cases due to capacity problems in the
long-term teams. Most care plans are implemented well and good use is
made of written agreements with parents and carers, but this is not
consistent enough yet. Most cases show evidence of managerial oversight
and case supervision but quality and consistency remain variable and, in
some instances, managers are not ensuring that plans are carried out
quickly enough. Not all of the less urgent children in need cases have
detailed plans in place or are regularly reviewed.

Multi-agency risk assessment conferences (MARAC) are well established
with attendance from a wide range of agencies. Agencies value the
opportunity to share information, agree action plans and monitor
progress. MARAC oversees high risk cases and reviews offenders due to
be released from prison who may pose a risk to children. The Education
Welfare Officer, through the MARAC process, ensures that children and
young people who are at risk of going missing and who are not attending
school are monitored and safeguarded, including by ensuring that the
relevant local authority is advised if the child or young person is placed
out of area, including by attending an out-of-borough school.

The contribution of health agencies to keeping children and
young people safe Grade 3 (adequate)

42.

43.

A dedicated Child Protection Unit based at North Middlesex University
Hospital has led to improved communications between safeguarding lead
staff and staff working in the accident and emergency department. All
child protection medical examinations are undertaken by a community
paediatrician or consultant and, in the main, urgent medical examinations
are prioritised. However, there have been some delays in examining
children or young people who have suffered chronic neglect and too many
children do not attend follow-up medical examinations.

Previous admissions or visits to hospitals are tracked, as are known cases
of domestic violence. Alert systems in the accident and emergency
departments and the minor injuries unit at North Middlesex University
Hospital, and the accident and emergency department of the Whittington
Hospital, ensure that information is recorded and there is computer access
to child protection information also. Every child seen is checked against
existing child protection information and records confirm that checks are
completed. All staff are aware of how to access out—of-hours information
on children and young people who have child protection plans. An
extensive programme of audit has been undertaken by the designated
safeguarding professionals at North Middlesex University Hospital to
assess the implementation and measure the impact of their safeguarding
policies and procedures. Findings have been analysed and improvements
have been made to practice.



Page 43

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 15

44,

45.

46.

The contribution by health professionals to keeping children safe has been
strengthened through better information sharing and additional training
too, which has raised awareness of safeguarding. Health visitors, based at
North Middlesex University Hospital, provide valuable liaison between
acute and community services and ensure that relevant information is
shared quickly. They review every visit to accident and emergency
services by a child or young person and follow up any areas for concern.
The CAMHS at North Middlesex University Hospital gives good support to
accident and emergency staff when dealing with young people who
present with mental health problems. The out-of-hours service is working
well and advice and support from a CAMHS consultant is available 24
hours a day, seven days each week. Increasingly, the CAF is used by front
line health staff, including health visitors, school nurses and therapists. All
pregnant women less than 20 years of age who are seen at the North
Middlesex University Hospital are referred by midwives to the teenage
pregnancy re-integration officer, who instigates a CAF process for
additional service as may be required. More generally, the use of the CAF
by midwives in the area is low, however, and has been identified as an
area for development.

Ensuring that the safeguarding needs of children and young people are
met is a high priority for NHS Haringey. The effectiveness of health
agency and other partnership working to improve and sustain
safeguarding outcomes for children and young people is evidenced
through significant reductions in infant mortality rates and in the rate of
teenage conception. NHS Haringey is fulfilling its statutory safeguarding
obligations and the primary care trust has in post designated safeguarding
professionals, who are supported by named safeguarding professionals.
Health agencies have a strong strategic and operational commitment to
effective partnership working through the HSCB. Senior health managers
contribute to strategic decision making within both their own organisations
and across the partnership as a whole. Child protection case conferences
are usually attended well by health professionals and health staff are
assured that their contributions are valued and influential in formulating
child protection plans.

NHS Haringey uses a ‘safeguarding scorecard’ to monitor safeguarding
performance of the main health care providers and the internal
governance of all organisations providing health care to children and
young people ensures that safeguarding policies and procedures are
comprehensive. However, the monitoring of safeguarding activities of
smaller, independent contractors has focused more on medical general
practice rather than on dental practitioners, pharmacists and optometrists.
Adequate progress is being made to ensure that domestic violence is
recognised, and responded to suitably, by health care professionals, using
a risk-assessed and more proactive approach. Additional training is helping
health staff to identify instances of domestic abuse.



Page 44

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 16

47.

48.

49.

50.

High vacancy rates for health visitors have been tackled by GOSH through
a combination of professional development and recruitment. However, the
delivery of universal preventative services, particularly through the Healthy
Child Programme, is being affected adversely by the need to prioritise
child protection. The school nursing service is under pressure also,
reducing its capacity to work preventatively with children and young
people in schools. Nevertheless, good progress has been made in ensuring
that health professionals are supported well when working with families
where there are child protection concerns. Supervision arrangements, how
in place for relevant staff in all health agencies, are audited for timeliness
and quality of practice. Health staff interviewed during the inspection are
well motivated and report that they have good access to training and
development. The support and guidance provided to them by designated
and named professionals is seen as a key factor in improving safeguarding
practice. Progress is being made in improving the quality of health
records, which are now clearer, more comprehensive and demonstrate
management oversight. Decision making has also been strengthened with
evidence that monitoring and evaluation of health plans is taking place.

Good progress is being made in engaging GPs in safeguarding. All general
practices in the borough have an identified lead for safeguarding and, at
91.5% cent, attendance by GPs and their staff at Level 1 safeguarding
training is high. 65.5 per cent have attended Level 2 training and 24 %
have attended Level 3. Attendance by GPs at child protection case
conferences is increasing from a low base and a new template for
submitting GPs’ reports to case conferences has led to an increase in the
number of reports and to improvements in their quality.

Health professionals and agencies have learnt from serious case reviews.
For example, staff supervision arrangements have improved and
documentation has been revised so that it captures concerns and the
actions agreed with partner agencies. Provision of relevant safeguarding
training has been a priority for health partners and access to single and
multi-agency training events is good. All health care providers have met
and exceeded the 80 % target for completing Level 1 training and
attendance at more specialised training is increasing. Provision for, and
access to, training in safeguarding is monitored by all health care trusts
and regular reports are provided to trust boards as well as to NHS
Haringey. The Child Death Overview Panel is established and works
effectively at a local level through a multi-agency approach.

Tiers 1 and 2 CAMHS have been affected by increased demands for
services. In particular, Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust
has faced challenges in meeting waiting time targets but has arranged
additional evening and weekend appointments to manage demand.
Currently, all specialist Tier 4 in-patient CAMHS care is provided in house
by Barnet, Enfield and Haringey Mental Health Trust and no young people
are admitted to adult wards. Introducing a single point of referral to



Page 45

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 17

51.

52.

53.

CAMHS has led to better management of access but increases in demand
for these services has led to a waiting list. Referrals are prioritised,
depending on the level of need, and all urgent cases are seen within an
appropriate timescale. However, waiting times for non-urgent cases are
increasing. NHS Haringey is working with Barnet, Enfield and Haringey
Mental Health Trust to improve the capacity and range of provision in the
community.

The targeted adolescent mental health service programme operates in a
number of schools and has resulted in improved engagement with parents
and young people on alcohol awareness and increased levels of
confidence among school staff in dealing with this subject. Similarly, there
is evidence of effective targeted work by the Parent’s Infant Psychology
service, which is provided in three of the children’s centres. Young people
with disabilities, who have mental health needs also, receive a good and
responsive service through the dedicated CAMHS disability service, which
provides mental health care as part of a multi-disciplinary team. There are
multi-agency care pathways for children and young people with Attention
Deficit Hyperactivity Disorders and Autistic Spectrum Disorders. The
presence of a social worker from the children’s disability team five
mornings a week within First Response has improved response times.

An effective joint strategy for reducing incidences of teenage pregnancy,
with well defined key areas for development is leading to a sustained and
downward trend in rates of teenage conception. In 2007 the area had the
highest rate of teenage pregnancies in the capital, but this has now
significantly declined. Agencies collaborate well to provide a wide range
of contraceptive and sexual health care services through easily accessed
venues such as the mobile bus clinic, nurse and drop-in sessions and fixed
appointment clinics such as health centres, libraries, and Connexions. The
4YP bus has been particularly successful in encouraging young men to use
contraception. The use of emergency hormonal contraception by young
people, accessed from pharmacies and GPs across Haringey, is increasing
also.

Teenage parents receive a good level of ante-natal and post-natal support
from a range of agencies. Midwives work collaboratively with partner
agencies such as Connexions, the hospital education service and family
support workers in children's centres to ensure that the needs of young
people are met in coordinated ways. The family nurse partnership, which
started in September 2010, provides targeted support for teenage parents
and is prioritising the involvement of young fathers in the care of their
children. Health visitors, therapists and midwives are working well with
staff in children's centres to provide integrated and early intervention
parenting programmes, including in emotional well-being and child
development. NHS Haringey has adequate arrangements in place for
children and young people needing an examination following an allegation
of sexual abuse. All forensic examinations are undertaken in a purpose



Page 46

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 18

54.

55.

built unit, which is appropriately equipped and staffed and sited out of
borough. Non-forensic examinations are carried out locally.

Adequate health support is provided to children with disabilities through a
range of well integrated services. The Early Support Programme has been
successful in improving practice in the early identification and assessment
of need, and a single point of access has shortened waiting times for
accessing services. A multi-agency early support panel meets fortnightly to
review plans. Budgets are arranged to provide as seamless a service as is
possible and there are good working relationships between health,
education and children’s services, which has contributed to the growing
effectiveness of contact, referral and assessment processes. Adequate
support is provided to children with long-term health conditions through
the community children’s nursing team. Short term respite care is
available through a wide range of services. Parents of children with
disabilities have been involved in service planning, including the
development of the early support programme.

The substance misuse service is good and provides a wide range of
education and advice to young people on substance related issues, with
an emphasis on harm reduction. As well as direct work with young people,
the team advises and supports professionals, parents and carers about
substance abuse by young people. There are strong links with other
services, including midwifery, and this has resulted in better attendance at
ante-natal care appointments. Close work with CAMHS and the Youth
Offending Service has led to increased referral rates from young people.
Performance against National Treatment Agency targets has improved
over the last year and is now in line with, and in some instances better
than, neighbouring London boroughs.

Ambition and prioritisation Grade 2 (good)

56. Safeguarding is given the highest priority within the council and across the

partnership as a whole. In the last 18 months, there has been good
progress in strengthening and transforming safeguarding provision in the
borough, including by raising awareness levels, coordinating better
partnership working though the HSCB, the Children’s Trust and other
planning systems, and improving the arrangements for contact, referral
and assessment. High ambition for safeguarding is expressed in every
quarter of the borough and safeguarding services have been prioritised
deliberately to ensure effective delivery. The large majority of staff who
responded to an independent survey, conducted in May 2010, considered
that safeguarding of children and young people had improved across the
borough although many recognised that work was needed to consolidate
and strengthen services further. All key agencies, including children’s
services, the police, health services, schools and the voluntary sector, are
strongly committed to strengthening all aspects of safeguarding and to



Page 47

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 19

57.

58.

59.

60.

securing demonstrable improvement to services and outcomes for
children, young people and their families.

Arrangements for dealing with initial contacts, referrals and assessments
were the subject of an unannounced inspection in July 2010 and were
judged to have improved following earlier inspections. Improvements
noted then have been sustained and this service is good overall. Other
good examples of the prioritisation of the safeguarding of children and
young people include the operation of MARAC, police responsiveness to
domestic violence, improved early intervention strategies, and more
robust arrangements for identifying those children and young people who
are seen by hospital accident and emergency services and who may be at
risk of harm.

The Chief Executive of the council, the Director of Children’s Services, lead
member for the council and lead member for children’s services have high
ambitions for safeguarding and have given the highest priority to
improving these services. This view is shared within the police and health
services at the most senior levels and by school head teachers and
governors. The borough’s ambition for improved safeguarding
arrangements across the partnership is reflected in the allocation of
additional financial resources, and a commitment to protecting front line
safeguarding services, in the context of an overall council budget
reduction in 2011-12. This follows additional investment in safeguarding
services in previous years, and planned investment of £7.4 million in
2011-12. Health services increased investment in safeguarding by £3
million in 2009-10.

HSCB acts as a strong focal point for improving and monitoring the quality
of safeguarding services and outcomes. There is how a good track record
of staff training in safeguarding among the partnership. The HSCB
business plan targets key areas and ensures that gaps in services are
identified and filled quickly. Across the partnership, senior managers are
aware of the strengths of current services and of the areas needing more
attention, including the need to achieve greater consistency in quality, to
give services time to embed improvements, and to enhance provision for
some children in need. Senior leaders and managers pay close attention to
measures of individual service performance but there is more work to do
in evaluating jointly the impact of different services and ways of working
on improving outcomes.

Senior managers and politicians are aware of the pressures on
safeguarding services and the need to ensure that staff resources are
sufficient to meet current and projected demands. To do this, a useful
process has been devised that enables managers and elected members to
determine the key staffing requirements in different service areas at any
one time. Alongside this, a strategic review of services is underway to
ensure that resources are utilised in the most effective way, including in



Page 48

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 20

relation to the use of legal processes, the need for community based and
targeted services, and arrangements for joint service commissioning and
service evaluation.

Leadership and management Grade 2 (good)

61.

62.

63.

The council and its partners have provided sustained and consistently
strong leadership over the past 18 months, which has helped lead to
marked improvements in safeguarding since the last major inspection.
Many aspects of key services including First Response, accident and
emergency services, health visiting, GP engagement and police
responsiveness have been transformed. Political leadership is strong and is
ensuring that there is enough capacity to maintain and continue to
improve services over time. Awareness of the importance of safeguarding
has been raised and there is greater, but still proportionate, identification
of need and risk. The very experienced chair of HSCB has established
constructive and clear communication lines with the Director of Children’s
Services and the lead member, who chairs the Children’s Trust also. This
is ensuring a healthy level of challenge. Senior management teams across
the partnership are focused on keeping safeguarding a priority and
sustaining the improvements that have been made to front line practice
already. There is a strong commitment to the Safeguarding Champion
Scheme which enables senior officers to advance their understanding of
safeguarding arrangements through their sponsorship of individual
children and young people.

Good progress has been made with staff recruitment and retention and
there has been greater workforce stability in the past year. For example,
there are no vacant health visitor posts and social work teams are mostly
fully staffed. Senior managers and elected members monitor staffing
levels against work pressures regularly and are responsive to additional
demands on the service. A significant number of agency staff has become
permanent employees, illustrating their commitment to working in the
borough. Across the partnership, there is confidence in the arrangements
that are in place for recruiting staff. Firm action is taken to deal with any
misinformation provided at any stage of the recruitment process or
subsequently.

Joint work and effective collaboration across the partnership is helping to
ensure that the workforce is suitably trained, experienced and stable.
Strategies for workforce development are well established in each of the
key agencies and across the wider partnership. Access to training,
including E-learning, is good and levels of attendance at training is
monitored as is how well any training meets individual needs. Good work
is being done in schools to help support school staff and governors in
discharging their safeguarding responsibilities. Overall, there is greater
level of confidence among the partnerships’ work forces and a strong
commitment to continuous improvement. The HSCB child protection



Page 49

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 21

64.

65.

handbook, known as the ‘little green book’, is readily available in all
locations and well used by staff across the partnership.

The focus on improving front line services and greater multi-agency
working, and strengthening First Response provision in particular, has
ensured continued improvement. New structures are now well embedded
and good work has been undertaken to extend the children in need and
early intervention strategies. Close monitoring of the volumes of contact,
referral and assessment and their impact on staff workload, taking
account of staff skill and experience, has helped to improve services and
this approach is being used to review other aspects of safeguarding
services. Further attention is now needed to achieve greater consistency
in recording, supervision and care planning. .

Work has been undertaken to clarify management responsibilities in
council children’s services, particularly below team manager level, with the
appointment of practice managers and senior practitioners. However, in
some instances, senior managers have ‘acted down’ to create
management capacity where there has been staff shortage or a short-
term increase in demands on services. Good leadership has ensured that
the needs of minority groups are understood, including awareness of any
particular safeguarding issues, and that they are provided with the
necessary assistance to access services. Services are signposted well and
due sensitivity is paid to different races, cultures and levels of disability
among the population.

Performance management and quality assurance

66.

67.

Grade 3 (adequate)

The council and its partners have developed a sound framework for
managing performance and for assuring service quality. Multi-agency
performance monitoring complements the council’s performance
management arrangements and includes consideration of performance
against benchmarks for statistical neighbours and nationally, giving a clear
view of strengths and allowing weaknesses to be identified. As such,
performance monitoring is enabling effective oversight and scrutiny of key
performance indicators and targets. A range of audits of single and multi-
agency services are conducted frequently, too, but not all findings are
systematically collated, evaluated and reported on.

The role of the child protection advisers, who chair initial and review child
protection conferences, is insufficiently developed in relation to quality
control and quality assurance. Consequently, they do not fully contribute
to service evaluation. Comprehensive data on the use of the CAF are
collected but there is insufficient analysis of it to assist with future
planning and capacity building.



Page 50

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 22

68.

The frequency and quality of staff supervision is adequate overall but
evidence in records shows that not all cases are discussed fully and that
managers do not always set clear and measureable enough performance
and development objectives Nevertheless, staff across the partnership
indicate that managers at all levels are approachable and easily accessible
and there is considerable appreciation of the work of the multi-agency
safeguarding panel, which assists in dealing with complex and high risk
cases.

Partnership working Grade 2 (good)

69.

70.

71.

Partnership working is good. There is a strong commitment to sharing
information and to working together to safeguard children and young
people across the borough. Senior leaders from across the partnership
consistently highlight the importance of collaboration, establishing a
culture for cooperation that now permeates all agencies and services.
Underpinned by good joint training and workforce development strategies,
there is evident appreciation of the respective roles of staff from the
different participating agencies. HSCB provides an appropriate range of
training to meet the needs of staff, and child protection induction training
is mandatory across all agencies. The focus on service quality and
outcomes is increasing. Managers from all agencies who are engaged in
safeguarding are aware of the findings of serious case reviews and have
taken active steps to disseminate learning through their organisations.
Staff are actively choosing to work in the borough, despite the obvious
professional challenges, and there is a strengthened sense of stability and
continuity across the workforce.

HSCB is well established and its membership and governance
arrangements have been reviewed and strengthened. The board is well
led by a strong independent chair with a good depth of experience and
knowledge. Senior staff from a wide range of agencies, including adult
services and the voluntary sector, are represented on the board and bring
high levels of commitment and challenge. Attendance at board meetings is
routinely monitored and is generally good.

Rightly, HSCB is maintaining a close strategic focus on key child protection
processes and outcomes for children and young people whose
circumstances make them most vulnerable, while continuing to deliver
preventative services and considering wider safeguarding issues. In the
light of the continuing importance of child protection work, and the
increasing volume and complexity of cases coming to the attention of the
partnership, this approach is entirely appropriate. HSCB sub-groups are in
place and they monitor progress in implementing relevant action plans.



Page 51

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 23

Services for looked after children

Overall effectiveness Grade 3 (adequate)

72.

73.

74.

The overall effectiveness of services for looked after children and young
people is adequate. Outcomes for Being Healthy, Staying safe and Making
a positive contribution are adequate. Outcomes for Enjoying and achieving
and Economic well-being are good. The experience of some children in
care has been affected by high turnover among social workers, although
this is stabilising. Corporate parenting arrangements for looked after
children are adequate but lack flair and imagination in engaging all
partners and listening to users. Corporate parents could offer more
challenge to services on behalf of looked after children, including in
relation to setting joint service targets for continued improvement.

Across the borough, there are some very good examples of services
supporting looked after children and young people successfully,
particularly in relation to helping children and young people to achieve and
in support to secure economic wellbeing. Virtual school arrangements are
good. Considerable effort is given to meeting the diverse needs of children
from different ethnic groups. However, until recently there has been a lack
of planning coherence across all services to ensure all partners are
contributing fully. While agencies undoubtedly share high ambition for
looked after children and young people, this has not been reflected fully
across all service or business plans or within an over-arching framework.
Commissioning for placement choice is good, and placements are suitably
monitored for quality and safeguarding, but monitoring the health needs
of children and young people placed out of the borough is less consistent.
Performance management and quality assurance processes are adequate
although analysis and evaluation of the impact of services on outcomes
does not routinely inform service development. The provision and quality
of personal education plans remains too variable.

Individual social care practice with looked after children and care leavers
is generally good and the quality of casework is at least adequate and
often good. Statutory requirements for visiting and for case reviews are
met in most cases. Despite heavy demands on social workers and other
professionals, case reviews are held within appropriate timescales.
Adequate processes are in place to support care and transition planning
for looked after children and young people. The provision of short-term
breaks for looked after children with disabilities needs attention.

Capacity for improvement Grade 2 (good)

75.

The council and its partners have good capacity to improve services for
looked after children, young people and care leavers. Performance
indicators, especially those for educational attainment and qualifications



Page 52

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 24

76.

on leaving care, are better than in similar areas and the national picture.
Nine of the 11 national indicators for looked after children services show
improvement over the past year. Outcomes for the majority of looked
after children and young people are good and a platform for further
improvement has been established to ensure improvements are sustained.
The confidence that care leavers have about their own lives and their
support is reflected in the mature and well balanced arguments they put
to inspectors about their experiences. There is an appropriate emphasis
on nurturing children’s talents, within and beyond the school day,
particularly through sport.

Senior and political leadership has been strengthened and is clearly aware
of service needs and areas for further improvement. The quality of
services for looked after children and young people has been maintained
despite the priority afforded to safeguarding services, and the partnership
is aiming for top quartile performance in all areas. There are strengths in
partnership with community groups, which extend the capacity of local
services in meeting the diverse needs of the borough community and
promoting higher levels of personal aspiration. The well established virtual
school is effective in promoting self-belief as well as encouraging ambition
in individual children and young people. The partnership’s workforce is
well trained and skilled. Taken together, these are important building
blocks for future improvement.

Areas for improvement

77.

In order to improve the quality of provision and services for looked after
children and young people in the borough, the local authority and its
partners should take the following action.

Within three months:

. Review the role of Independent Reviewing Officers to ensure they
are carrying out their quality control and assurance functions fully
and that the data that they collect is used to inform strategic
planning

. Ensure there are robust systems in place to monitor the quality of
healthcare provided to all looked after children and care leavers in all
settings.

Within six months:

. Review the effectiveness of current corporate parenting
arrangements, including in relation to the strategic direction of
services, target setting and review, and engaging the full partnership
in achieving its ambition for looked after children and young people.



Page 53

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 25

. Increase the use of personal education plans and establish a more
consistent framework for regular review and reporting

. Review arrangements for the provision of short-term breaks for
disabled children and young people and develop joint guidance for
improving practice in this area.



Page 54

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 26

How good are outcomes for looked after
children and care leavers?

Being healthy Grade 3 (adequate)

78.

79.

80.

81.

Fundamental changes have been made to the assessment of health care
for looked after children, and the introduction of British Association for
Adoption and Fostering documentation has contributed to an improvement
in the quality of health care assessments. Initial health assessments and
health reviews are now structured, provide appropriate information and
demonstrate good health care planning. Good progress is being made in
improving the quality of health records.

In contrast to older records, most recent records are clear, comprehensive
and show evidence of management oversight. Health care records reflect
improvement also in the effectiveness of decision making, and there is
ample evidence that monitoring and evaluation of health care plans is
taking place. The assessment of health needs of looked after children is
more timely as specialist hurses are working to improve attendance at
review meetings. Monitoring systems, and the database underpinning
them, are well supported by the designated nurse for looked after
children, who ensures that data is accurate and current, including
information about immunisation status, attendance rates at review
meetings, and the uptake of dental and ophthalmic appointments.

A dedicated multi-disciplinary mental health service for looked after
children and young people is provided by the Tavistock-Haringey Service.
Although numbers of referrals to this service continue to rise there is no
waiting list currently. A variety of therapeutic services for looked after
children, young people and their carers are provided by this service, with
priority being given to supporting placements to reduce the risk of
disruption. A ‘strengths and difficulties” questionnaire is used to help
identify the emotional needs of children and the team at Tavistock-
Haringey works in partnership with voluntary organisations, such as Open
Door, to give children and young people access to appropriate counselling
and support services.

Targeted health promotion activity is adequate and generally provided on
a one-to-one basis by the specialist nurses during health reviews. Effective
sexual health advice and contraceptive advice is provided by one of the
looked after children nurses, who has additional training in sexual health
care. Links to drug and alcohol workers are adequate and the sexual
health team ensures improved access to these services. Designated
Looked after children health staff work well with other partners to support
14 looked after young people who are pregnant currently. Additional
support and care from the family nurse partnership is accessed by 10 of
these 14 pregnant young people.



Page 55

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 27

82.

83.

A significant number of looked after children and young people are placed
out of the borough area and arrangements for carrying out health reviews
and health assessments have been inconsistent. Health services in the
area in which the child or young person has been placed have not been
commissioned to respond to individual health needs in a timely way
although earlier arrangements have been strengthened by the
appointment of a designated nurse. From January 2011 GOSH in Haringey
staff will complete all health assessments. More formal commissioning
arrangements are in place to ensure that CAMHS are provided for children
and young people placed outside the borough.

The designated nurse for looked after children is working with the leaving
care team to improve the quality of information provided to young people
as they leave care but this service is relatively new and not yet embedded
in practice. The views of looked after children and young people about
their health care needs are sought actively by the designated nurse and
the health team. A leaving care information pack has been developed and
the views of looked after children and young people have been taken into
account in creating more ‘youth friendly’ health assessment processes.

Staying safe Grade 3 (adequate)

84.

85.

Safeguarding arrangements for looked after children and young people
are adequate. Almost all looked after children and young people who
responded to the Care4Me survey stated they feel very safe or safe and
are clear about who they would talk to if they had concerns or if they felt
they were being harmed. Pre-birth information is used adequately to
identify vulnerable families and to offer early support. Families with young
children on the edge of care have access to an appropriate range of
support services, including parenting programmes, access to specialists
who are sensitive to ethnic and cultural differences, and nursery provision.
Parents moving from residential parent and baby assessment placements
benefit from the provision of appropriate support during their transition
back into the local community. Risk is usually managed well so that
children and young people are kept at home, with support, where this is
possible. Children and young people placed out of borough are closely
monitored to ensure they are kept safe.

A wide range of community-based services are available to help avoid the
use of care although prompt action is taken when children or young
people do need to become looked after. Almost all children and young
people in care feel they are in the right foster placement and think the
care they are getting is at least adequate or better. They feel they get on
well with their foster carers. However, more young people have frequent
changes of placement than is the case in similar authorities. The current
system for approving placements, which is thorough, can result in delays
in making decisions about placements and care plans are not always
routinely shared with children and young people or their parents.



Page 56

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 28

86.

87.

88.

Foster carers who met with inspectors describe good support from social
workers and local services whenever placements were at risk of being
disrupted. Foster carers have access to good quality training and support,
although some report that communication with the placing authority and
social workers is not always effective. Some young people have had
frequent changes of social worker and older young people who met with
inspectors felt that this had not been easy for them. Children in care
reviews take place regularly. The local authority fostering agency was
judged as good in the last Ofsted inspection and the local authority
adoption agency as adequate. Comparatively low numbers of children are
adopted and the reasons for this are being reviewed by the council. The
quality of care in the local authority children’s homes occupied by looked
after children and young people is at least adequate.

The council’s commissioning of individual fostering and residential
placements is well managed through a designated placements team.
Safeguarding is promoted by using only those independent providers
judged as adequate or above. At the time of inspection over two thirds of
looked after children were placed in provision judged to be good or
outstanding and no children were placed in provision judged to be
inadequate. A needs analysis of the borough'’s looked after children and
young people informs the tendering process, including for services for
ethnic minority children, children with disabilities, mother and baby
provision, fostering and residential children’s homes. The engagement of
young people in this process is good and effective collaboration with other
local authorities has resulted in a joint tendering process for the provision
of semi-independent accommodation.

Overall, however, such arrangements are not taking place within the
framework of an overarching strategy. For example, a framework for
permanency planning exists, which includes a commitment to support
children and young people at risk of care and to enable children and
young people who enter care to return home quickly if this option
promotes their welfare, but there have been significant delays in court
processes for some children who have entered the care system. Greater
measures to improve placement stability are needed although cost and
volume incentives to promote better placement stability are being
formulated. An adequate cross-agency strategy for the tracking and
monitoring of looked after children and young people who go missing is in
place but there is no independent person who undertakes return
interviews. This lessens the likelihood of learning from children and young
people’s experience and can lead to delays in improving services. Where
children are placed in council-run residential homes, return interviews are
conducted by the residential care worker but this arrangement is not
compliant with the council’s Missing Children Protocol or the Pan London
Protocol.



Page 57

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 29

89.

The school attendance of all children in care, for whom the council has
responsibility, is monitored with rigour through the provision of Welfare
Call, a service which contacts all schools each day to confirm
attendance. Attendance patterns are considered at a ‘children in care
attendance forum’ where individual plans to tackle concerns are
formulated.

Enjoying and achieving Grade 2 (good)

90.

91.

92.

93.

Educational outcomes for looked after children and young people are
good. Almost all children and young people responding to the Care4me
survey said they felt their education was good and that care leavers had
access to the best possible education. Most felt they were getting the
support they needed to make progress. Almost all attend school regularly
and their overall attendance is above the national average for looked after
children and young people. The council has appropriate arrangements for
monitoring and tracking attendance and works with young people to
support improved attendance. Fewer children in care than elsewhere are
subject to fixed term exclusion and permanent exclusion rates are low.
This is good.

Local data illustrate that looked after children and young people make
good educational progress in relation to their starting points. Progress at
school is carefully monitored and a range of strategies is adopted to
increase the rate of progress or to overcome barriers to learning when
outcomes stall. As a result, the performance gap in attainment between
looked after children in the authority and the national average for all
children and young people has narrowed significantly over time. Thirty
one per cent of those taking GCSEs in 2010 achieved five A*—C grades.
This is better than is found nationally for looked after children and young
people.

A recent audit has identified that personal education plans are not always
up to date, however, although those that are complete do show that the
child or young person was involved in drawing up and reviewing the plan.

The strong support and wide range of activities provided by the virtual
school make a good contribution to raising achievement, enjoyment and
participation. The council is effective in ensuring that the educational
support provided for looked after children and care leavers educated
outside the borough equals that of those within the borough. Where
children and young people are placed out of the area, the virtual school is
active in ensuring that good educational provision promotes positive
educational outcomes. A good range of interventions and opportunities,
including one-to-one tuition, learning mentors and out-of-school clubs, is
appreciated by carers and has impact on raising attainment and
aspirations. A very effective study group, organised by the council,
provides after-school structured support for those that choose to attend.



Page 58

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 30

94,

Staff at the club are highly motivated and are careful to highlight the good
or better progress being made in individual cases. Arrangements for
monitoring how well looked after children achieve and enjoy are good.

A good range of extended leisure, cultural and recreation activities is
organised, promoting enjoyment and contributing to raising attainment
and well-being, including through established local authority partnerships
with voluntary and community groups. Major strengths include the very
effective partnership with Tottenham Hotspur Football Club and a local
book shop. Good support is given to meet the diverse cultural needs of
looked after children and young people from ethnic minority groups.

Making a positive contribution, including user engagement

95.

96.

97.

Grade 3 (adequate)

Opportunities for looked after children and young people to make a
positive contribution are adequate. The views of children and young
people are routinely sought and specifically included within statutory visit
reports. However, less than 20% of children responding to a survey for
this inspection thought their views were used well to influence their care.
Managers recognise the need to ensure that issues identified as important
by young people are acted on but this ambition is yet to be realised fully.
Although issues raised by children and young people are dealt with on an
individual basis, information is not collated centrally in order to identify
patterns and trends to influence strategic service planning. A recent report
compiled by the independent reviewing officers draws attention to the
concerns of young people, particularly in relation to poor communication
when their social worker changes.

Despite this, there are a number of ways in which young people have
been able to make a positive contribution, including through being
consulted on local provision, involved in the recruitment of staff, acting as
young inspectors and contributing to the redesign of the ‘pathway plan’
format. A group of care leavers is involved actively in developing the
specification for accommodation and for tendering for fostering services.

Children and young people receive adequate information to help them to
express any concerns they may have about the care they receive. This is
currently being organised through their independent reviewing officer or
through advocacy services provided by Barnardos. However, the contract
with Barndados is an interim arrangement and to date has not been well
publicised. Not all children and young people responding to the Care4Me
survey stated that they knew what an advocate was or how they could
access one. Recent concerns identified by young people include changes
of their social workers with no opportunity for them to say goodbye
properly. Independent visitors provide good support to a very small
number of children and young people by helping them participate in age



Page 59

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 31

98.

99.

100.

appropriate and enjoyable activities of their choice. However, current
capacity in this area is limited.

Documents explaining to children and young people how to complain are
available but in their responses to the Care4Me survey most indicated they
did not know how make representation. While data held by the local
authority indicates that no formal complaints have been reported recently
to the local authority complaints team, the council is aware of the need for
staff training to ensure that children and young people’s concerns are
recorded appropriately and that they are used to inform future service
improvements.

A good range of opportunities and experiences is available to encourage
children and young people to take part in leisure and social activities that
develop self-belief, to develop the confidence needed to express their
views and opinions, and to take an active part in their local community.
The council provides wide support to a range of community groups to
ensure cultural and individual needs are considered in the planning and
delivery of activities. Individual services, including voluntary and
community groups providing leisure services, canvas children and young
people’s views in relation to the range of activities that they would like to
access. The Children in Care Council has been established only recently.
Only about a quarter of those responding to the Care4Me survey had
heard of it. Although the London Pledge has been adopted by the council,
very few children, carers or officers are aware of it and consequently it is
having little impact. Councillors are considering ways of engaging young
people more fully in decision-making processes.

There are good examples of young people being diverted away from crime
and anti-social behaviour towards more positive and constructive
activities. Kicks, a project between the police and Tottenham Football
Club, identifies troubled young people and introduces them to activities at
the football club. This has led to accreditation as level 1 football coaches
for some young people. However, there is no clear or agreed multi-agency
strategy to reduce numbers of looked after children and young people
involved in offending behaviour. Information on rates and trends are not
readily available and it is unclear which partnership holds a strategic
overview of this work or where strategic responsibility for service
development effectively rests. The Youth Offending Service has recognised
the need to further develop a restorative justice programme, tailored to
the specific needs of looked after children and young people.

Economic well-being Grade 2 (good)

101.

Outcomes for economic well-being are good, with many care leavers
attaining good qualifications, a wide set of skills and/or university places.
Good arrangements are in place to help young people identify what they
need to do to achieve their goals. An appropriate array of educational and



Page 60

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 32

102.

103.

104.

105.

vocational choice is available in local schools and colleges. Young people
report good support from their Connexions personal advisers in finding
both appropriate courses and the on-going support needed to achieve
success. Many looked after children and care leavers successfully gain
qualifications and are well supported in their applications for university
and progress to higher education. Currently 44 care leavers are attending
university, which is above the figure for comparator areas. Others are
successful in gaining a wide range of work-based skills. As a result, a
higher than average proportion of young people leave care with
qualifications and skills to support their future economic well-being.

Transition processes between children’s and adult services for those with
learning difficulties and/or disabilities are well established. These
arrangements have been reviewed by the scrutiny panel recently and
endorsed by the cabinet with areas for further improvement identified.
Local scrutiny of the transition to adult services for those with more
complex needs has identified areas for further improvement and parents,
carers and independent reviewing officers report some delays in access to
services during the transition to adult services.

Voluntary and community groups work collaboratively with the council to
develop confidence, self esteem and work-based skills among care
leavers. A joint-funded three-year project between the council and the
Premier League is working effectively with 21 schools in the borough.
During the past year, this has included exciting work experience and
training opportunities.

Almost all care leavers are found suitable accommodation and most young
people responding to a recent survey felt they were supported well to
prepare for independent living. However, they and foster carers who
responded to a review commissioned by local councillors said that not all
young people were fully equipped with independent living skills such as
cooking, budgeting and awareness of their entitlement to allowances.
Progress is being made to establish better processes for access to
accommodation and social housing and strengthening tendering process
to extend the range of housing choice. A revised allocation approach,
introduced from January 2011, provides greater flexibility and choice for
up to fifty care leavers each year.

Care leavers who met with inspectors felt that they usually received the
help they needed to tackle their problems and that they were
appropriately involved in the development of plans made for them. Plans
seen by inspectors were thorough, however data held by the local
authority illustrates that less than a half of looked after young people aged
16 or 17 years have a clear ‘pathway plan’ that is relevant to their current
needs and progression into adult life. The leaving care team provides a
good range of multi-agency support to prepare young people for leaving
care. Pathway plans that are in place incorporate, appropriately, the



Page 61

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 33

106.

outcomes of multi-agency planning, including the choices young people
have made, and reflect their backgrounds, needs and interests.

The virtual school collaboration between Haringey, Enfield, Barnet and
Waltham Forest and Tottenham Hotspur Football Club is working jointly
with 160 young people and is aimed at helping them into employment,
education and training. The council has been successful also in its bid to
the Greater London Authority for funding to help keep vulnerable children
and looked after children and young people in education. The cultural
needs of young people, including unaccompanied minors, are properly
taken into account and life skills training includes the purchase and
preparation of appropriate food. However, care leavers are not convinced
always of the value of the planning process and are unsure that it helps
them to achieve their goals. The needs of those with physical and learning
needs are considered appropriately and levels of support are generally
accurately identified to enable those who may need additional help to live
semi-independently.

Quality of provision Grade 3 (adequate)

107.

108.

109.

The quality of provision is adequate. Children and families on the edge of
care have access to an appropriate range of support services. Thresholds
are clearly understood with partners reporting significant improvements
over the past 18 months in the operation of thresholds and in the level of
responsiveness from children’s services. Family Group Conferences are
used well to prevent care if this is in the interests of the children and
young people concerned. Families with children in the younger age group
have been a particular focus of early intervention and prevention services.
A Parent Infant Psychology Service offers advice and support on
attachment to parents. Effective assessment and decision making ensure
that those children that need to be looked after are identified and that
appropriate plans are drawn up for them. The Public Law Outline is
managed tightly by legal services with regular tracking of cases.

Schools report improved and effective communication and continually
good support in raising aspirations and educational attainment through a
range of initiatives arranged through the virtual school. There has been
some focus on completing and improving the quality of personal education
plans, although the council is falling short of its target of 100% completion
of personal education plans within the required timescale.

The children in care teams assess needs well, reflecting good multi-agency
awareness and understanding of the needs of looked after children and
young people. This information is used in drawing up care plans and these
are generally comprehensive and regularly reviewed. They reflect social
workers’ and other professionals’ good knowledge, and understanding of,
the views and needs of the children and young people. However, care
plans are not shared routinely with children and young people and their



Page 62

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 34

110.

111.

112.

parents. Some looked after children benefit from building positive
relationships with their social worker over time, leading to improved
outcomes. However, many have had several changes of social worker and
they are not always informed when and why these changes have
happened. This reduces their confidence in the support available to them
and disrupts continuity of planning. Wherever possible, unplanned
changes of placement are avoided but more looked after children and
young people experience three or more home moves than in similar areas,
and reasons for this have not been fully evaluated to help inform future
strategic planning.

Looked after children reviews are timely and usually of good quality, and
actions from previous reviews are tracked and monitored well. Proactive
action is taken where an assessment identifies a need for a change in
provision. The council acknowledges that there needs to be a more
concentrated focus on the older age groups of children, who already in
care, and who could possibly return to their families with intensive
support. In most cases, statutory visits by social workers take place within
the required timescale, although audits of case files demonstrate that the
council is not fully compliant and in a few cases there is some slippage in
the frequency of visits. Records of visits are mostly well written. The views
of children, young people and their parents or carers are routinely
considered, although some looked after children and young people feel
insufficient weight is given to their wishes and views.

The Independent Reviewing Officer service supports the timely review of
looked after children in most cases. The high number of looked after
children, currently, is affecting reviewing capacity with some independent
reviewing officers holding in excess of 80 cases. In order to meet the
reviewing requirements for looked after children, the council has placed
lower priority on the reviews of children receiving short breaks and not all
such children are having regular reviews. Reviews are generally of good
quality and actions from previous reviews are being monitored. While the
independent reviewing officers meet with children and young people prior
to their review, many looked after children responding to the Care4Me
survey said they did not know how they could contact their reviewing
officer and said that they found difficult telling them about their concerns.

Translation services are accessible for children and their families for
reviews. However, for children with communication difficulties, access to
specialist communicators is problematic. The most recent annual report
does not include any information relating to the issues expressed by these
children and young people. This is a missed opportunity. Additionally, the
annual report is not sufficiently evaluative and analytical enough to inform
practice and service planning. For children with disabilities, short breaks
through the Aiming High programme have increased significantly from 188
in 2008 to 550 in 2010. However, access to residential short breaks has
ceased during the refurbishment of the residential home.



Page 63

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 35

113.

114.

The number of looked after children and young people is increasing at a
faster rate than found nationally. However, looked after children and
young people are being appropriately and this is promoting their welfare.
However, due to insufficient local accommodation many children and
young people are being placed out of the area. Comparatively low
numbers of children are adopted despite the use of parallel planning and
sound monitoring arrangements and further developments are needed to
ensure that identified children move from the care system to permanent
placements without unnecessary delay.

The council has an effective approach to commissioning high quality
external placements. A marketing strategy, designed to recruit more local
carers, is in development as the council has the ambition to provide more
local provision. Most looked after children and young people live in good
quality, stable and settled foster placements, which are meeting their
needs. In some cases, children and young people placed outside the
borough are less able to access similar services to those provided by the
council and their partners. The current system for approving placements
results in some delays in decisions being made about placements.

Ambition and prioritisation Grade 3 (adequate)

115.

116.

Ambition and prioritisation are adequate. The leader of the council, lead
member for children’s services, and senior managers have high ambition
for looked after children services. This is shared by the wider partnership,
and there is particular evidence of improving support for looked after
children and young people from health services. Outcomes for looked after
children and young people are currently at least adequate and in some
instances they are good. The corporate parenting advisory group, with
cross-party involvement, has increased its focus on monitoring provision
and challenging outcomes for looked after children and young people.
However, this work is not disseminated widely to managers or
practitioners. Little knowledge of this activity, or of the advisory group,
was demonstrated either by managers within looked after children
services or across the wider partnership. Similarly, knowledge of the
‘Pledge’ is limited both within the partnership and among looked after
children and young people themselves.

Elected members do visit children’s homes and their reports highlight
areas for improvement, which are then appropriately considered.
However, there is less evidence of elected members championing of the
needs of looked after children and young people or facilitating
engagement with them to develop services. Corporate parenting
arrangements overall are unremarkable and lead members have
acknowledged the need to strengthen corporate parenting arrangements
and user engagement and there is a strong ambition to achieve this
quickly.



Page 64

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 36
Leadership and management Grade 3 (adequate)
117. Many looked after children and young people are receiving a good service

118.

119.

120.

and their needs are being met and good outcomes are being achieved.
Individual service areas are adequate or better but the service overall
lacks strategic coherence and opportunities are being missed to move the
service to a higher level. Political leadership is good and the Director of
Children’s Services and senior managers have a very clear and detailed
understanding of current service strengths and areas for further
development. A good interim development plan provides a step-by-step
approach to address areas of development and under performance and is
setting out a clearer strategic direction.

The pace of service improvement, until now, has been affected to a
degree by the need to tackle other priorities across the partnership,
mainly in safeguarding. Independent reviewing officers are reviewing
cases in a timely manner although their workloads are heavy and capacity
is stretched. Staff and managers across the partnership are optimistic that
services for looked after children and young people will be strengthened
and that attention to corporate parenting and improved service user
engagement will become a priority.

Commissioning arrangements for placements are good. When a placement
is required there is a clear process to test availability within directly
provided resources. Good work has been undertaken to build the market
and to ensure providers are prepared and able to meet the demands of
service specifications, including safeguarding and value for money.
Benchmarking systems are in place in conjunction with other boroughs,
which is building intelligence on costs and capacity to meet the needs of
children and young people in a placement. A formal process exists to
involve placement officers in reviews where issues of specification and
service delivery are raised. Where therapeutic services are being offered
by providers, these are routinely checked for effectiveness before a
placement is finally agreed. A needs analysis of the borough’s looked after
children appropriately informs the tendering process and specifically
includes services for children from minority ethnic backgrounds, children
with disabilities, mother and baby provision, and fostering and residential
children’s homes. Service standards are currently monitored through
Ofsted inspection reports, visits to residential establishments and
attendance at case reviews. Performance tracking of stability has not yet
been fully established but plans are in place to develop this. Similarly, cost
and volume incentives to promote stability are being developed. The
engagement of young people in the tendering process is good.

Effective collaborative working with other local authorities is resulting in a
joint tendering process for the provision of semi-independent
accommodation. There are good examples of joint and tripartite
commissioning arrangements to provide services to children and young



Page 65

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 37

121.

122.

people with special needs, including those who are looked after, but this is
not in the context of an overarching commissioning strategy.

The head teacher of the virtual school provides good leadership. The work
of the children in the care education team is highly respected by schools
and other local services. Effective monitoring, tracking and evaluation of
looked after children’s progress has had a positive impact on raising
attainment. There are shared high aspirations for looked after children and
young people and improving arrangements to support educational
attainment at age 18. The recently appointed team leader for post-18
services has a good understanding of strategic and performance
management and acknowledges that there are aspects of services that
need to be developed and that new organisational arrangements are not
fully embedded.

The use of out-of-area placements for children with special needs is being
reduced as new in-house resources are established, including a new
special school and primary school for children with special needs with co-
located services.

Performance management and quality assurance

123.

124.

Grade 3 (adequate)

Specific performance management systems for looked after children and
leaving care services are in place, which are supported by designated
personnel attached to teams. Performance against national indicators is
almost always in line with, or better than, similar areas. Most performance
indicators are improving, although some important indicators such as
placement moves are showing less improvement. Where monitoring
identifies underperformance, such as the low number of completed
personal education plans, action is taken to improve performance.
However, the looked after children service does not have monthly reports
of performance, drawing on a core dataset, and the council accepts that
there is scope for more systematic analyses of available performance data
to inform service improvement. Where performance monitoring is in place,
there is an absence of routine analysis and evaluation. Additionally, where
performance is dependent on partnership working, multi-agency groups
are not involved in checking on progress or recommending service
improvements, for example in relation to looked after children and young
people who are offending.

Although social workers report that they receive regular supervision, this
was not evident in all cases seen by inspectors and nor was the recording
of reflective practice. Management decisions are recorded routinely on
individual case notes. Case file audits of the quality of practice are
undertaken but only infrequently. Findings of audits that do occur are not
collated and disseminated sufficiently within and across the service to
inform and improve practice.



Page 66

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children 38

125. Members of the safeguarding policy and practice committee commissioned
thematic audits to scrutinise and challenge the performance and progress
of services, and to compliment other audits commissioned by the leader of
the council, lead member for children and families and senior
managers. The committee, which includes backbench councillors,
appropriately holds the administration to account on issues of
performance and seeks further analysis of issues of concern as necessary.
As the panel comprises elected members only, it lacks multi-agency
representation and the impact of its monitoring and learning is not spread
across the partnership as a whole. Children and young people’s views are
recorded routinely during their reviews. However, these are not collated
by the independent reviewing officer team. The service therefore does not
have this routine opportunity to learn from the child or young person’s
voice or for this to inform practice or strategic planning.



Page 67

Haringey Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children

39

Record of main findings:

Safeguarding services

Overall effectiveness Adequate
Capacity for improvement Good
Safeguarding outcomes for children and young people

Children and young people are safe and feel safe Adequate
Quality of provision Adequate
The contribution of health agencies to keeping children Adequate
and young people safe

Ambition and prioritisation Good
Leadership and management Good
Performance management and quality assurance Adequate
Partnership working Good
Equality and diversity Good
Services for looked after children

Overall effectiveness Adequate
Capacity for improvement Good

How good are outcomes for looked after children and care leavers?

Being healthy Adequate
Staying safe Adequate
Enjoying and achieving Good
Making a positive contribution, including user Adequate
engagement

Economic well-being Good
Quality of provision Adequate
Ambition and prioritisation Adequate
Leadership and management Adequate
Performance management and quality assurance Adequate
Equality and diversity Good




Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 69 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

Haringey Council

Overview and Scrutiny Committee On 30 March 2011

Report Title: An Update Report on Key Performance Information in Child Protection

Report of: Peter Lewis, Di of Children and Young People’s Service

-
p—

Contact Officer : Debbie Haith, Deputy Director, Children and Families

Email; Debbie.haith@haringey.gov.uk

Tel: 0208 489 4641

Wards(s) affected: ALL Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose of the report (That is, the decision required)

This report provides update on some key performance data relating to the Council’s
work to safeguard and protect vulnerable children.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)
2.1.

3. State link(s) with Council Plan Priorities and actions and /or other Strategies:

4. Recommendations
4.1.To note contents of this report




Page 70

5. Reason for recommendation(s)
5.1.

6. Other options considered
6.1.N/A

7. Summary

7.1. This report provides update on some key performance data relating to the
Council's work to safeguard and protect vulnerable children

8. Financial Comments

8.1. There are no specific financial issues arising from this report

9. Head of Legal Services Comments
9.1n/a

10. Head of Procurement Comments — [Required for Procurement Committee]
10.1. n/a

11. Equalities & Community Cohesion Comments

11.1. n/a

12. Consultation

121

13 Use of appendices /Tables and photographs

13.1 Attached are graphs containing the National Indicators (NI's) relating to the
Children and Families Service. These contain details of annual performance and
targets, comparative data and recent monthly data.

14 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985




Page 71

Commentary to Appendix of NI's

15. Referrals — the table below shows the rates of referrals per 10,000 population |

under 18 compared with the previous years and national averages.

Haringey | Haringey | Natl Avg Haringey

31/3/09 31/3/10 | 31/03/10 Haringey | Haringey | 01/04/10

Rate per | Rate per | Rate per 31/3/09 31/3/10 to

10,000 10,000 10,000 Number Number 28/2/11

2278

No of Referrals (approx
Received in Year 575 679 548 2815 3324 | yearend
rate 502)

The rate of referrals has decreased in 2010/11. Significant work has been undertaken
within the multi-agency screening team to ensure that thresholds for social work
intervention are clear and appropriate. Around 90% of contacts into the service are
dealt with at this point either by social workers, police, specialist health visitors,
education and CAMHS.

16. NI 68 - this measures the conversion rate of referrals going onto be initial
assessments. In the year to date to the end of February 84% of referrals converted to
initial assessments. These are higher than previous outturns and comparator
averages, an indication that thresholds for social work intervention are clear and
appropriate.

17. Assessments -. The timescale for completion of initial assessments has changed
from 2010/11 to allow 10 days for initial assessments to be completed rather than 7 to
ensure an early and timely view is taken of children’s needs. The year to date
percentage of assessments completed in 10 days is 66% against a plan of 70% for
the year. The February position for this indicator showed much improvement with 136
out of 184 initial assessments completed in timescale, 74%. Assessment processes
——————and-timeliness are-subject to-on-going meonitoring;review-and audit.

NI 60 - for more complex cases, a more comprehensive assessment is required.
These are known as ‘core assessments’ and are required to be completed in 35 days.
The year to date position for core assessments in timescale is 60.5% against a target
of 70%. There has been an increase in cores completed in the month partly due to a
focus on completion of older core assessments outstanding, therein affecting overall
timeliness. The Head of Service for First Response is in the process of undertaking an
audit and review of assessments older than 40 days. The data below breaks down the
number of assessment completed against those completed in timescale.

Statistical | 2010-
Neighbours 11 31%" (;)c(:’t Nov Dec Jan Feb

2009-10 Plan : 10 10 11 11
Number of Initial
Assessments
Completed in the 148 206 201 175 165 184
Month
Number of initial 98 1562 123 121 89 136




Page 72

- Statistical | 2010-
Neighbours | 11
2009-10 Pian

Oct
10

Sep | Dec | Jan Feb

10 11 11

: Nov

assessments
completed within
10 days

Percentage of
Initial Assessments
Completed in 10
days

66.2% | 73.8% | 61.2% | 69.1% | 53.9% | 73.9%

Year to date
Percentage of
Initial Assessments
Completed in 10
days |

78% 70% | 65.8% | 67.2% | 66.3% | 66.6% | 65.4% | 66.2%

Number of Core
Assessments

Completed in the 92 85 103 |
Month

109 106 117

Number of Core
Assessments
Completed within
35 days of initial
assessment

64 45 70 71 68 76

Percentage of
Core Assessments
Completed within
35 days

69.6% | 52.9% | 68.0% | 65.1% | 64.2% | 65.0%

NI 60 - Year to
date position of
Core Assessments
Completed

79% 70% | 58.0% | 57.4% | 58.8% | 59.5% | 60.0% | 60.5%

18. Numbers subject to a child protection plan. The table below shows the rates of
children subject to child protection plans per 10,000 population under 18 compared
with the previous years and national averages. Although the proportion of children
appeared to plateau over the last few months, there has been an increase in the
number of chifdren becoming subject toa CP plan in February, 39 comparedto an
average of 26 each month since the beginning of April.

The Borough continues to see a greater number of children and young people subject
to CP Plans moving into the Borough than moving out of the Borough. In the 13
months to February 2011, 43 children subject to a CP Plan moved into the Borough
and 36 moved out of the Borough. Since January this year, 11 children subject to CP
Plans have moved into the Borough and only 3 have moved out.

Haringey Haringey
31/3/09 31/3/10 Haringey | Haringey | Haringey
Rate per Rate per | Nat Avg 31/3/09 31/3/10 28/2/11
10,000 10,000 31/03/10 | Number Number Number
pnidren Sublect 36.5 60 355 | 179 | 294 325
(rate 66)




Page 73



Page 74

Data for Children Subject to Child Protection Plans in Haringey Comparator Boroughs
is listed in the table below:

Children subject to a CP Plan @
31/03/2010
Hackney N/A
Islington 132
Wandsworth 162
Waltham Forest 170
Lewisham 203
Hammersmith and Fuiham 235
Greenwich 278
Haringey 294
Lambeth 304
Southwark 336
Croydon 346

19. NI 67 - children who are subject to child protection plans should be reviewed
initially after three months and then every six months thereafter. At the end of
February, there were 7 children whose reviews had been held out of timescale in the
year (Apr — Feb 11), 97%, an improvement on the previous year, and in line with the
national average. Work is underway to review, streamline and improve child protection
review processes.

20. NI 65 - this measures children newly becoming subject to a plan who had
previously had a plan some time in their earlier life. Numbers are small and monthly
variations are not a reliable indicator of performance. In February, 3 out of 39 children
who were made subject to a Child Protection Plan had previously been subject to a
plan. This is a year to date position of 9.2% against a plan of 10% and in line with
comparators. '

21. NI 64 - this measures children who, when their child protection plan ceases, had
had a plan for two or more years. Again monthly variation is too small to be a reliable
indicator of trends. In February, one of the 25 children who ceased to be subject to a
Child Protection Plan had been subject to a plan for two or more years. This is a year
to date position of 5.4% and in line with comparators.

22. Number of children in care - Following a sharp rise in numbers of children in care
in 2009/10, although slightly higher, overall numbers of children in care have stabilised
throughout 2010/11. However, there has been an increase in the proportion of care
proceedings initiated in this year with 201 care proceedings initiated between April 10
and February 11 compared with 186 between April 09 and March 10, requiring more
complex work and allocation of resource.

At the end of February 2011, there were 609 children in care. This remains higher than
comparator averages as outlined in the tables below.

The following table shows the rates of children in care per 10,000 population under 18
compared with the previous years and national averages.



Page 75

Haringey Haringey
31/3/09 31/3/10 Haringey | Haringey | Haringey
Rate per Rate per | Nat Avg 31/3/09 31/3/10 28/2/11
10,000 10,000 31/03/10 | Number Number Number
. . Nat 58 609
Children in Care 100 119 “3N 89 492 591 (rate
124)

*SN is our top 10 statistical neighbours

Data for Children in Care in Haringey Comparator Boroughs is listed in the table
below:

Children in Care @ 31/03/2010
Wandsworth 205
Hammersmith and Fulham 255
Hackney 305
Islington 315
Waltham Forest 340
Lewisham 525
Southwark 555
Lambeth 565
Haringey 590
Greenwich 590
Croydon 1010

23. NI 66 — as with children subject to plans, children in care also have to be regularly
reviewed. At the end of February, 89% of children in care had their reviews in
timescale in the year. This is 62 out of 609 children in care who had at one or more
reviews out of timescale in the year so far. Comparator averages for this indicator are
around 90%.

24. NI 63 and 62 — are both measures of the stability of children in care. NI63
measures those who have been in the same placement for at least 2 of the last 2.5
years. In February, 99 out of 142 children who had been in care for 2.5 years or more
had been in the same placement for at least 2 years (70% and in line with comparator
averages).

NI62 measures how many children have three or more moves in the course of a year -
performance is good (and when these Pls were subject to bandings, 0-16% was
considered top performance). At the end of February, 81 out of 609 children in care
have had three or more placements so far in the year (April 10 — Feb 11 which is
13.9% for this period or 14.9% for the previous 12 months). Performance in this area
is higher than comparator averages. A review of all children with 2 or more placements
in the year has been undertaken. Much of the initial movement of children relates to
sibling groups being separated on initial placement until appropriate placements are
found to ensure that where possible these siblings are placed together. There is also a
particular pressure in this area due to the high number of children in care and difficulty



Page 76

in finding appropriate placements as soon as children are coming into care. Long term
stability of children in care however remains at a good level and in line with averages.
Findings from all analysis in this area will form part of the commissioning strategy for
children’s placements. :

- 25. Adoptions/Special Guardianship Orders - There has been 16 adoption and 11
special guardianship orders granted to date totalling 27. NI61 - 11 (69%) of the
children adopted were placed within 12 months of best interest, this is in line with
comparator boroughs.

26. NI 147 - measures the number of care leavers known to be in suitable
accommodation. 91% of children who turned 19 in the year to date were in suitable
accommodation on or around their 19" birthday, in line with comparator boroughs.

27. NI 148 - is a subset of the Council’s NEET figures and looks at 19 year old care
leavers who were in Education, Training or Employment on or around their 19"
birthday. Care leavers are one of the hard to reach groups. 71% of children who
turned 19 in the year to date were in education, training or employment on or around
their 19" birthday, considerably higher than comparator boroughs.



Page 77

Appendix 1 — Key Performance Indicators — Graphs

Referral and Assessment

Graph 1

Number of Contacts and Referrals

1296

626
s00 660 0%

560

479

779
2ﬁ

1187

/]

1223

1037

SIPRJUOD

™~
-4
E— LT

sjellojoy

Li-qod
b l-uep
01-20Q
0L-AON
0110

L
R
ordes §

=
oi-Bny
ol

ol-ung

oL-Aew

Graph 2

NI 68 Referrals to children’s social care going on to initial

assessments

108.71 12.2

af

70 67.4 65

: C—
5
o bi-q

841 €8

NS ¢U60
N

P-a

[, 01120

—— R

any

5 ) o
bl 9.4 S
©w
3 R o v
2
S o150 Ui
(N o
©«
2 G 0w

s T
g 0l-4

sbejusniag

dy

Graph 3

Percentage of Initial Assessments Completedin 10 days

79.7

S | ] wN oue0
y 28eiaay
A NS 0160
2 I oo
o
< [ -3
*
3 (N e
¢ ) o100
S (N o
b 0l-AON
®
o (R -0
; () 0\-d°S
; (N o:-5nv
] o\-Inr
] o\-un

2

64 634 635 66

76.4
e
>
)
=

. o+

aBejuasseg

83.3




Page 78

Graph 4
NI 60 Percentage of Core Assessments completed within 35
days ;
78
§7.9 69.8 68 70 =
62.7 65.1 642 66 ..
@
% 50 48.4 52.9
€
®»
| I I
il
o
(=3 (=] o [~} [=) =] [=) (=3 - - o] cE Zo :
T Teioo BishE W ORITL: A0 RS
3 0 4 b=
2 £§3 52288 2 885 ¢ T 52 &
s ©< o
=4

Children Subject to a Child Protection Plan

Graph 5
Number of Children subject to a CP plan per 10,000
populaton
66
64 64
63 62 83
61 61
59
57 57
=) “ < (4 @ @ 4 L @ - -
T ¥ P 3 % i : : 3 : 32
3 o
2 $ 3 3 I 5 $ £- & -9
Graph 6
Nl 67 Reviews of Child Protection Cases. The percentage of
child protection cases which should have been reviewed
within the year that were reviewed. This is the year to date
§, 99 99.1 991 gg7 figure. 100 994
= 97.4 97.4 97.3 / 96.8
: o
g 7
%
74
T 2 8 8 2 2 g2 2 2 % Tt S g
5 2 &N 3G 0k &N TE W gF =8 45 @ =
= 3 P O SFE QW =W g - ps
& -3
2

@
=2}
®
A
2
<«
<
h
=3
3
=3




Page 79

Graph 7

N1 65 The percentage of children with a new CP plan during the
month/year who had previously been the subject of a plan.

Including year to date.

[ unowso
afeion
MANNJee oxmw
- ueld
el .
- B o
~ o
™~
~ [ +buer
2 [l ovovo
o Oi-AON
Ly ]
o oine
<[ or-unr
= [ o-w

afeuadied

13.2 134

Graph 8

Ni 64 Duration with a CP plan. The percentage of chlidrenwhoseCP
plans have ceased duringthe year who had been subjectof a plan
continuously fortwo years ormore.

<«
«©
e

2 [ vN oweo
AN NN uwn%nmw
© ] ueid 11-01
T EE aa
<« [ t+-aed
o R vyver

© 0i-22Q

o Q)-AON

; [ o120

o pdes
o 0ybBny

™~
~ (N o\-inr
<« Ql-unpe
o [ o1-few

3 [@ ovady

aBejusasay

Children in Care

Graph 9

Number of Children in Care per 10,000 population

127

-
& (N -4

121

ti-uep

01-29Q

122

122

Ol-AON

[ e

124

126

125

oK-deg

ol-6ny

ob-ip

123

ol-ung

124

oi-Aey

122

O4-ady

11



Page 80

Graph 10
Ni 66 Percentage of CIC for whom there is a review in timescale
98
%7 %64 955 955 g5 963
5
oIIIIIlIII | 1
o]
©
£
@
| I
[
o.
¢ %% %% %% % %L OE By
b o 5 e Q % > o c Fe] a o o
< £ 3 5 2 &8 6 2 8 8 & ¢ 52 ¢
& o< o
Graph 11
NI 63 Long term stability of CIC. Children under 16 who have been
looked after for 2.5 years or more and in the same placement for at
least 2 years
72 -, - 72
69.8
68 68 " 68
Z
%
%
%
%
%
%
%
/
=) =] [=] Q o =} =] [~ =] - - -4 Z290 «
T I I % & : : 3 :E 3 & %gz
a & 35 P 3 @ 2 ° @ s © ®
< e @D -~ x <
F 5 < Perfentagé S O & T 82 2
e
Graph 12

Percentage

pr-1o [
way-10 [N
son-10. I %

Jul-10

NI 62 Stability of 'Piacements of CIC. The percentage of
Children looked after at 31st March with three or more
placements during the year

16.4 17.09 16.5

51 157 452 16.6

1l I I I

oct1o D
oy
Y

Jan-11

Aug-10
Sep-10

roo-+1 (TR
w
s
P
- d
osnona [ 3
w

10-11 Plan
09/10 SN
Average

12



Page 81

Graph 13

Ni 61 LAC adopted to date and placed for adoption within 12

78

months of best interest decision being made,
83.3

-
o | _ YN 0K60
P~

abesoay
NS 0160

2 RN
ueld 11-04
bi-qed
by-uer
01220

Q}-A0O|

68.8
I60 soiiill

rcenége

0K108
ot-deg
o1-Bny
okinr

opune

66.6 66.6

o 0l-Aey

o Olady

Graph 14

Adoptions and Special Guardianship

of Children in Care

< A
N T e 11
eSSy

° N o

T ] o

© N o

© . o

S . o

~ ([ o

w [ ok

~ @ ov

~ [ ok

UBIPIIYD JO JoqUInN

id
01

994

uep

LY-1e}

AON

PO

dag

Bny

ne

unp

Aepw

ady

Graph 15

NI 147 Care Leavers in suitable accomodation

(=4
hd
-

100

100 100 100

100 100

{ | ¥N oMeo

g oBeioay
NS 0460

92 90.4 90.3

ueld -0l

= EET .,

Hi-a9d

pi ~ue
g ] v

0F-93Q

83.3

01-AON

01120

0y-dog

66.7

ol-Bny
ol-ir

opune

80

ol-Aew

ol-4dy

ofejuoaseg

13



Page 82

Graph 16

NI 148 Care Leavers in education, training or employment

b=
o
-~

100

100

C——] vNouso
AN 268134y NS 01/60
c R e o
2 == o
) 1924
(] +1-uer
[ ov-oea
[ o1-noN
N o120
5 . o oos
2 I oL-Bny
(] o
S [N o:-unr
2 (e oi-Aew
2 (] o1-1dy

sbejuasiag

66 6358

72.7

66.7 66.7

14



Page 83 Agenda Iltem 12

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Overview and Scrutiny on 30" March 2011

Report Title: Preliminary analyses of results at the end of the Foundation Stage, Key
Stages 1, 2, 4 and Post 16 for 2010.

Report of: Director of The Children and Young People’s Service

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose

1.1 To inform Members of the results at Foundation Stage, Key Stages 1, 2, 4 and
Post 16 and provide data on attendance and exclusions for 2010.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

2.1 The 2010 results are encouraging and thanks are due to our pupils and their
teachers.
2.2 Key Stage 2 and 4 results are particularly good as are the results for our Looked

2.3 However, the existence of significant differences in the achievement levels of
different ethnic groups remains a concern and a focus of school improvement
activities.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To note the analyses of the results set out in the summary report in Appendix 1.

3.2 If Members want to read the full report on the preliminary analyses of results this
is available from Avi Becker, Head of Management Information and Research on
0208 489 5009 or by e mail to avi.becker@haringey.gov.uk a final version will be
prepared in April 2010 when all the results should be validated.

After-Children. —



Page 84

Report Authorised by:

o e (e s eney)
PeterCewis —
Director of The Children and Young People’s Service

Contact Officers: Bob Garnett, Deputy Director, School Standards and Inclusion

Avi Becker, Head of Management Information and Research
Tel: 020 8489 5009

4. Executive Summary

4.1  This report provides a summary of the analyses to date of the provisional school
results for 2010.

4.2  Overall results in 2010 in Haringey are continuing to improve, particularly at Key
Stages 2 and 4. Key Stage 2 results were affected by the national boycott of the
tests. Once all the results are validated the report will be updated, this should be
completed by April 2011.

5. Chief Financial Officer Comments

5.1  The Chief Financial Officer has been consulted on the content of this report and
has no additional comment to make.

6. Head of Legal Services Comments

6.1  The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report.
There are nolegal implications-in-this report.

7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Not applicable

8. Headlines

8.1  The headlines are:

Foundation Stage results have declined by 1% in the main progress indicator (78
points or more) and the gap between the lowest performing 20% and the median
score for all children increased slightly.

Key Stage 1 results have remained fairly similar to the previous year at all levels.
Key Stage 2 results were affected by the national boycott of the tests. The
published results for pupils attaining Level 4 or above in both English and maths
show an improvement from 68% to 73%. National results improved from 72% to
74%.

Key Stage 4 results have continued to improve. Haringey is now 2.4% behind

J




Page 85

8.4

national for 5+ A* -C GCSE (Haringey 73.0%, national 75.4%) and 5.4% behind
national for 5+ A* -C GCSE including English and mathematics (Haringey 48.0%
national 53.4%).

Post 16 average point score per exam entry improved from 206.1 to 212.5
compared with a national increase from 211.7 to 214.4.

In the appendix to this report there is a summary of the analyses of the
provisional school results. The full report can be obtained by contacting Avi
Becker and some hard copies have been put in the Members’ Room.

9.1

Equalities Implications

The attainment of all groups is monitored in the Children and Young People’s
Service and information provided at school level ensures that the progress of all
pupils is monitored closely. The Haringey data includes detailed analysis of the
performance of all ethnic groups, the largest groups being African, African
Caribbean, Turkish, Kurdish and White British. The report also provides a
detailed analysis at each key stage by gender, looked after children, free school
meals, as well as high attaining and low attaining pupils. The data that underpins
the analysis is included in the tables at the end of the report. The information is
used to focus school improvement activities.

10.

10.1

Conclusion

The results are analysed each year to help us to ensure that standards are
improving at the end of each key stage test and also to target and assess the
impact of our school improvement work. We recognise that we need to continue
to close the gap with the national data and maintain a particular focus on
improving results in the Foundation Stage and at Key Stage 2.




Page 86

Appendix 1

Summary of the analyses to date of the provisional school results 2010

FOUNDATION STAGE

1.

The Foundation Stage Profile (FSP) is the statutory end of year
assessment tool for pupils going into the reception class aged 5. Itis
still fairly new and the data need to be treated with caution as its
reliability is dependent on robust moderation systems being fully
implemented and on accurate ongoing assessments being made by
teachers. The percentage of children achieving at least 78 points and 6
or above in all of Personal, Social and Emotional development (PSE) and
Communication, Language and Literacy (CLL) declined by 1% to 42%
(national improved from 52% to 56%). The local authority gap between
the median score and the lowest 20% increased from 35.2% to 36.2%
(national gap reduced from 33.9% to 32.7%).

KEY STAGE 1

2.

The results at Key Stage 1 at levels 2+ were stable in reading and maths
but declined slightly in writing and science. At level 2B+ results were
stable in reading and improved slightly in writing and maths.

There continue to be significant differences between ethnic groups,
particularly at the higher level 3 in Key Stage 1. For example, 42%
White UK pupils attain level 3 and above in reading compared to 13%
African Caribbean, 12% African, 4% Turkish, 24% lIrish, 17% Nigerian
and 24% White Other pupils.

KEY STAGE 2

4.

Results at Key Stage 2 have been affected by the national boycott of
the tests which involved 37 out of 57 Haringey schools. The published
results for pupils attaining Level 4 or above in both English and maths
show an improvement from 68% to 73%. National results improved
from 72% to 74%.

KEY STAGE 4

5.

Steady progress has been made at GCSE with continued gains in the
percentage of pupils attaining 5+ A* - C grades. Since 2005 Haringey
has improved from 48.5% to 73.0% in the 5+ A* - C indicator (national
improvement is from 57.1% to 75.4%). Haringey is now 2.4% behind
the national figure. There is also improvement in the 5+ A*-C
(including English and maths) indicator. Haringey has improved from
31.8% in 2005 to 48.0% in 2010 (national from 44.3% to 53.4%).
Haringey is now 5.4% behind the national figure.



Page 87

The gap in performance between schools in the east and the west of
Haringey is also closing at Key Stage 4. In the %5+ A* - C (including
English and maths), the gap of 22% in 2002 has narrowed to 15% in
2010. This is now the main challenge for all schools to improve.

The attainment of most ethnic minority pupils at KS4 has improved
considerably and many groups are beginning to close the gap with the
Haringey average in the 5+ A* - C indicator. The challenge now is to
make good progress in the 5+ A* - C (including English and maths)
indicator where differential attainment is a significant issue.

The attainment of Looked After Children at most Key Stages (with the
exception of KS1) is above their national peers. The percentage of
Looked After Children who gain 5+ A* - C grades (including English
and maths) is 20% (provisional) in 2010 (12.0% nationally).

POST 16

9.

The average total point score per student increased from 632 to 633
compared to the national increase from 739 to 745. The average point
score per exam entry increased from 206 to 212 (national improved
from 212 to 214).

NEET

10.

There has been a decrease in the percentage of NEET from 12.5% in
2006/07 to 6.8% in 2009/10. The average number of NEET in
September, October and November (2010) was 306. The final
percentage for the year is based on November, December and January
2011 results. This is not currently available.

ATTENDANCE AND EXCLUSIONS

11.

12.

Pupils’ attendance in Haringey primary schools has improved from
94.24% to 94.38% (provisional). Attendance in secondary schools also
improved from 92.66 to 93.10%. Final national and local validated data
for 2009/10 are not currently available.

There were 7 permanent exclusions in primary schools during the
academic year 2009/10 (9 in 2008/09). There were 31 permanent
exclusions from secondary schools in the 2009/10 academic year (27
exclusions in 2008/09).



Page 88

Summary of provisional results 2010 (2009 in brackets)

Haringey @~ National Gap with
national
narrowed by
FoundationStage === = = USRS SO
Personal, social and emotional 64 (66) 77 (74) -5
development (PSE) - % achieving 6 or ;
. more in all 3 scales L. S
' Communication, language and Ilteracy 46 (49) 59 (65) -7

- (CLL) - % achieving 6 ormore in all 4
-scales " R N —
Mathematical Development % 60 (62) 70 (68) -4
~achieving 6 or more in all 3 scales |
- Percentage achieving at least 78 ; 42 (43) ! 56 (52) -5
~points and 6+ in all PSE and CLL i
LA % gap between median and lowest  36.2 (35.2) = 32.7(33.9) 2.2
20% |
Key Stage 1 2010 (2009 in
L . brackets) I
% Reading level 2+ ~80(80) 85 (84) -1
% Writing level 2+ . 74(75) 81 (81) -1
% Maths level 2+ . 8&5(85) 89(89) | 0
%Readinglevel2B+ | 67(67) | 72(72) 0
% Writing level 2B+ 53(52) | 60(60) | +1
% Maths level 2B+ 68(67) |  73(74) +2
Key Stage 2 The data here are 2010 (2009 in |
- published by DFE and refers to the 20 brackets)
 Haringey schools that did the tests :
%Englishleveld+ 81 (76) 81(80) 4
% Maths level 4+ 79 (75) 80 (79) +3
% English and maths combined 4+ | 73(68) | 74(12) +#3
% English level 5+ | 35 (26) 33(29) +1
% Maths level5+ | 35(32) | 35(35) : ________________________________ +3
Key Stage 4 (GCSE) T_ é
% 5+ A*-C ~ 73.0(67.7)  75.4(70.0) 01
"% 5+ A*- C (inc English and maths) | 48.0 (45.7)  53.4 (49.8) 1.3

% atleastone qualificaion | 98.0(969)  99.0(989)  +10

_Average point score per student r 7448 (739.1) 43

' Average point score per exam entry | "212 5 (206 1) | 214.4 (211.7) | +3.7
Note: The final column shows whether the gap with the national has closed from 2009 to 2010. A +
sign indicates the gap closing, a - sign indicates the gap having increased.




Page 89 Agenda Iltem 14

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2010

Councillors

Apologies

Councillors Bull (Chair), Browne (Vice-Chair), Alexander, Allison, Basu,
Ejiofor and Newton

Helena Kania and Sarah Marsh (Parent Governor

Also Present: Co-optees: Yvonne Denny (Church Representative)

Councillors: Reith, Rice and Winskill

Officers: Peter Lewis (Director Children & Young People’s Service),
Debbie Haith (Deputy Director, Children & Families), Hilary Corrick
(Independent Member of Safeguarding Policy and Practice Advisory
Committee), Rob Mack (Scrutiny Officer), Duncan Stroud (Associate
Director - Communications, Stakeholder ¥ Engagement and
Partnerships), Claire Wright (PCT — Head of Strategic Commissioning)
and Natalie Cole (Clerk)

MINUTE

NO. SUBJECT/DECISION

OSCO098. | WEBCASTING
The Committee noted that the meeting was recorded for live or future
broadcasting on the Council’s website.

OSCO099. | APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Winskill
and Sarah Marsh (Parent Governor Co-optee).
Councillor Rachel Allison acted as a substitute for Councillor Winskill.

OSCO0100. | URGENT BUSINESS
RESOLVED that Health Visitors be considered as a new item of
urgent business (minute OSCO107 below).

OSCO101. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items on the
agenda.

OSCO102. | DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS
There were no such items.

0SCO103. | CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS: CABINET MEMBER FOR

CHILDREN'S SERVICES

The Committee received the portfolio briefing and the responses to
advance questions posed to Councillor Lorna Reith, Cabinet Member
for Children’s Services. The Committee asked supplementary




Page 90

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2010

questions, the answers of which are noted below.

Re. Q8 — Child Protection Legal Fees - The Director of Children’s
Services informed the Committee that the number of legal
proceedings in child protection cases was not within the Council’s
control; more information on this would be circulated to the Committee
in response to questions on what actions were being pursued to
reduce legal fees and how the Council would meet the appropriate
milestone (action 98.1).

The Committee noted that other local authorities had similar
experiences with courts constantly requesting additional information
before making decisions on child protection. The Cabinet Member
informed the Committee that the over-spend on legal fees was being
highlighted at Government level.

Re. Q10 — Health White Paper — The Committee requested a short
note providing more information on how the Council was establishing
close relations with the GP Collaboratives in Haringey and how it
would ensure that the health and protection needs of children were
reflected in the Council’s response to the White Paper (action 98.2).

Re. Q12 — Committee members were informed that young people
coming back into the system were not due to inappropriate case
closures but rather to do with how contact about the individual was
made and how relevant the data was. The Deputy Director — Children
and Families explained that the service was keen to conduct further
case studies investigating how information was dealt with when
contact about an individual was made a number of times or when re-
referrals took place. The Committee noted that “contact” included any
information from any agency, even a simple update which needed
adding to the system.

A Committee Member expressed concern at the number of black and
ethnic minority (BME) children excluded from schools. Headteachers
from certain schools with high and low levels of exclusions would be
identified to be invited to a future Overview & Scrutiny Committee to
talk about the different approaches when dealing with exclusions
(action 98.3) including alternatives to exclusion. It was noted that the
school was responsible for providing alternative placements for young
people excluded for up to 5 days and the local authority provided an
alternative for those excluded for more than 6 days.

Re. Q20 — It was reported that whilst the number of social workers in
Haringey had increased there were still social worker vacancies. It
was noted that Social Workers applying for jobs were not as
concerned with financial incentives as they were about working for an
employer who provided support, suitable office accommodation,
training and a career path. The Committee would receive a briefing
note detailing the caseloads of social workers (action 98.3.1).

Re. Q23 — The Committee requested details on the number of children




Page 91

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2010

who were eligible for but did not take up free school meals (action
98.4).

The Committee asked further questions, the answers of which are
noted below:

The Committee congratulated Headteacher, Governors and pupils at
Gladesmore School on achieving 91% 5+ A*-C GCSE results.

In response to questions it was noted that whilst the local authority did
not encourage Free Schools it maintained contact with them and
worked towards a long term aim to include Free Schools within the
Council’s family of schools.

Out of the £8.5 million Primary Capital Programme funding withdrawn
from Haringey by the Government a settlement of £3 million would be
returned to the Council.

It was noted that the additional 40 children with Child Protection Plans
moving into the Borough was due to cheaper rental prices in Haringey.

As a result of the Southwark Judgement (which ruled that councils
should ensure homeless 16-18 year olds have a full assessment and
support for employment, health, education and finance as well as
accommodation) there was an additional 20 looked after children in
Haringey.

RESOLVED that the briefing and answers to questions for the Cabinet
Member for Children’s Services be noted.

0SCO0104.

SAFEGUARDING ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS

The Committee received the Safeguarding Plan for Haringey report,
presented by the Director of Children & Young People’s Service. A
discussion followed and the following responses to questions were
noted.

The increase in child protection activity had affected the ability to roll-
out the health visitor programme.

Re. Action 6.03 — Safeguarding Champion scheme extended across
the Children’s Trust (not on track) — the Committee was informed that
there had been commitment from the Chief Executive and the
Borough Commander and a Haringey staff member to act as
champions.

Clerks note: The Chair left the meeting at this point (19:35)and
Councillor Browne (Vice Chair) took over as Chair.

Re. Action 7.03 it was noted that the Council would ensure that as
much support and training will be available for the Third Sector as was
possible.




Page 92

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2010

Re. Action 4.09 — Ensuring that Young people are constantly involved
and their views are heard in Safeguarding Services - it was noted
that the Council was engaging with young people for example
attending Youth Council meetings and similar activities.

Clerks note: Councillor Bull returned to the meeting at this point (19:40
and resumed as Chair.)

The Committee asked for the reasons that the recent South
Tottenham Children’s Trust Board meetings had been cancelled
(action 99).

The Director of Children and Young Peoples Service congratulated
Northumberland Park School on it's good exam results.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

0SCO0105.

CHILDREN’S SAFEGUARDING POLICY AND PERFORMANCE
ADVISORY COMMITTEE

The Committee received the report updating on the on the work of the
Children’s Safeguarding Policy and Performance Advisory Committee,
introduced by Hilary Corrick, Independent Member of the Advisory
Committee and Councillor Reg Rice, Chair of the Advisory Committee.
It was noted that the date of the report should read 6™ October 2010.

The Committee noted that the Advisory Committee currently reported
to the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and there were on-
going discussions about whether the Advisory Committee should
come under the Scrutiny umbrella in future.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

0SCO0106.

CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT

The Committee received the update report on key performance issues
in Child Protection, introduced by Debbie Haith, Deputy Director,
Children and Families, who drew attention to the 17% increase in the
number of looked after children (LAC) and the 23% increase in those
subject to a children protection plan.

The Committee noted that there had been a decrease in the numbers
of assessments (NI59 and NI60) completed within the timescales
(page 64) particularly over the summer period. The report contained
data up to August 2010 therefore supplementary information on
assessments would be circulated to Committee Members (action
100.1). It was noted that the 10 day target for initial assessments to
be completed was more realistic (than the 7 day deadline) and allowed
professionals more time to talk to each other about cases.

The Committee asked for information on the 7 out of 21 care leavers




Page 93

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2010

who were not in education, employment or training (NEET) on their
19" birthday (Page 66, NI 148) (action 100.2).

Committee members noted that the statistics provided in the
performance reports were agreed by Council Members through a
process conducted by the policy and performance team. Committee
members were invited to email the Cabinet Member if they had
suggestions on specific variations on data that they wished the
Committee or the Corporate Parenting Advisory Committee to
consider (action 100.3).

In response to concerns raised about the low statistics for reviews in
August (page 69 of the agenda pack) and for social worker visits to
children in care (CIC) (page 71) it was noted that numbers tended to
dip during the summer holiday period and there were a number of
reasons why visits might be cancelled and rearranged.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

0SCO0107.

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS

Health Visitors

Claire Wright, Assistant Director for Commissioning - NHS Haringey
and Duncan Stroud, Associate Director — Communications,
Engagement and Partnerships — NHS Haringey were invited to the
meeting to update the Committee on the health visitor service.

The Committee noted that Great Ormond Street Hospital (GOSH) was|
currently delivering health visitor services on a priority basis due to
large work loads; a high number of health visitor vacancies and an
increase in the birth rate. It had not been possible to extend the
universal programme for health visitor services due to the increase in
child protection cases but discussions on how to best provide universal
health visitor services were being held between GOSH and Haringey’s
Children’s Services.

Committee members expressed concerns that only 14% of mothers in
Haringey received one-year visits from a health visitor and asked
officers to investigate how other boroughs such as Tower Hamlets
provided a much higher level health visitor service and noted that this
could be due to the higher level of funding received by other
authorities (action 101.1).

Assistant Director for Commissioning - NHS Haringey — stated that the
aspiration was to provide a multi-agency service for all in Haringey,
which would be led by the health visitors service.

The Director of Children’s Services - L. B. Haringey added that some
Children’s Centres provided a full health visitor services. He also
highlighted that future Sure Start grant funding would be ring-fenced
and would be used to enhance health visitor services.




Page 94

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MONDAY, 1 NOVEMBER 2010

Officers would investigate a Committee Member’'s report that the
baby-clinic in the Highgate Children’s Centre only offered a baby
weighing service and not universal health visitor services (action
101.2).

The Committee agreed that GOSH had not fulfilled the criteria for
providing health visitor services and that the department was failing
new mothers in the Borough. Committee Members also expressed
concerns that targeting health visitor services created a stigma which
could result in fewer people taking up services.

0SCO108. | MINUTES
RESOLVED that subject to the addition of Yvonne Denny, Co-opted
Church Representative in the list of attendees, the minutes were
agreed as an accurate record of the meeting.

0SCO109. | FUTURE MEETINGS

The next meeting would be held on Thursday 17" March 2011.

COUNCILLOR GIDEON BULL

Chair

The meeting ended at 20:40 hrs




	Agenda
	7 CABINET MEMBER QUESTIONS - CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES
	8 Children's Safeguarding policy and practice advisory committee
	9 SAFEGUARDING ACTION PLAN - UPDATE ON PROGRESS
	Appendix 1 -  Glossary of Terms (2)
	Appendix 2 Safeguarding Plan milestone report February 2011 (2)
	Appendix 3 inspection_of_safeguarding_and_looked_after_children_services_report (2)

	10 CHILD PROTECTION PERFORMANCE AND KEY ISSUES REPORT
	12 EXAM RESULTS
	14 Minutes

